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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE”"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small & mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors”) of SK Target Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREBES

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual results of SK Target Group
Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 May 2024.

REVIEW
Since 2022, the economy was taking slow pace in recovery after
the outbreak of coronavirus (“COVID-19"), while labour shortage
and rise in material cost remains challenges and pressures to
the Group.

The Group has experienced a slight increase in revenue of
1.25% for the year ended 31 May 2024 when as compared to the
revenue for the year ended 31 May 2023. The revenue generated
from the manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junction
boxes business increased by approximately 20.16%, the other
building materials and services business segment increased
by approximately 4.19% and the sale of health supplement
products business decreased by 100% as a result of the change
in direction of business strategy and management has dedicated
more resources on developing manufacturing and trading of
precast concrete junction boxes business following the recovery
from COVID-19.

The Group is cautiously optimistic about the overall business
prospects.

The management of the Group is committed to looking for

business opportunities that would generate long-term returns
to the shareholders of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBES

PROSPECT
The Group is taking positive steps to maintain the Group's
business operation and to build sustainable business operation
for the Group in order to maximize the shareholders’ return of
the Company.

The Board will continue to monitor the business environment in
Malaysia and Hong Kong and make appropriate adjustments to
the Group’s operations should there be a need.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all
shareholders and Board members for their support and efforts to
the Group. | also express my sincere gratitude to our customers
and business partners for their continued support, as well as
to my colleagues and staffs for all their dedication, loyalty and
contribution to the Group.

Loh Swee Keong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 August 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group manufactures and sells precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and precast concrete
electrical junction boxes under our brand of “Target” in Malaysia.
The Group’s precast concrete junction boxes are used in (i)
telecommunication and electrical infrastructures upgrade and
expansion works; and (ii) construction projects in Malaysia.
They are buried underground to deter tampering and are used
to house and protect a junction with telecommunication and
electrical utility connection and distribution access points from
weather, changing elevation underground and provide easy
access for maintenance.

The Group has been a registered supplier or the approved
supplier of various notable telecommunication companies such
as Celcom Axiata Berhad and Telekom Malaysia (“Telekom”)
since 2008 and the registered supplier of Tenaga National Bhd.
("TNB"), the sole electric utility company, in Malaysia since
2012. Hence, the Group’s precast concrete junction boxes
are used in infrastructure or construction projects involving
telecommunication companies and TNB.

For the year ended 31 May 2024, the revenue of the Group
slightly increased by approximately 1.25%, the increase is
mainly due to the increase in the revenue of the manufacturing
and trading of precast concrete junctions boxes business.
Malaysia economy is steadily improve following the recovery
from COVID-19.

Moreover, other factors which include labour shortage and
dependency on foreign workers, and the rising production and
transportation costs have exerted pressure on the Group’s
business operations. Nevertheless, the Group remains cautiously
optimistic about the overall business prospects.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue slightly increased from approximately RM30.3
million for the year ended 31 May 2023 to approximately RM30.7
million for the year ended 31 May 2024, representing a slightly
increase of approximately 1.25%. Such increase was mainly due
to the increase in the revenue generated from the manufacturing
and trading of precast junctions boxes business.

8 SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2024

XBEOERRE

AR E AR BOE R i E [Target] mbg
MERERTEEERGINBERERLIENE
B2 AEBNERERIEEIANE KA
SHNEERENERARRBEBZTRE - &)
BERIEE - ©IfUREN M TARIEEE - UK
RENE RRERE(ERE N RIEEROEK
HARSMAEAR  REXRRLM T SRE
BmRE - WRHRETEEE -

REE B2008F A% K AMEBE QA (W0
Celcom Axiata Berhad X Telekom Malaysia
([Telekom])) & &% it fit fE 7 =k 3R 7] i J&
7 AN B20124 #8 ATenaga National Bhd.
([TNB] - BRAADRME—NENABEERR])
mEEM LR - Eit - AEERFERIRR T
BEANPREE AR RINBHEZNEE
BHH -

HZE2024F5A318 I FE - REBRABEK
HINKI1.25% @ ZIEINTIE B AR BRI L
BEREECOVID- 1918 EEM IR oS - BETERLR
RITERENRERE SEBIRAILM

BESN - 85 T AT ERER A R IN 85 DA e A E I B B X
AEAFHMEARD HAKB M EBFLLHEM
BN - AW - ARBIDHEBERERFARFHER
LBRE -

e

WA

U A B E 2£2023F5831H L FE #3035 S
SEBEBIENERE2024F5A31B IHEED
07EEST - BHULIN491.25% - B RIS N
DEERRBEERIERANERESE
TEUAIE INFER o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWRE DN

For the manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junctions
boxes business, the revenue increased by approximately 20.16%,
from approximately RM24.4 million for the year ended 31 May
2023 to approximately RM29.3 million for the year ended 31
May 2024. The increase was mainly due to Malaysia economy is
steadily improve following the recovery from COVID-19.

For the trading of accessories and pipes and the provision of
mobile crane rental and ancillary services business, the revenue
slightly increased by approximately 4.19%, from approximately
RM1.3 million for the year ended 31 May 2023 to approximately
RM1.4 million for the year ended 31 May 2024. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in transportation income in
association with the increase in sales of precast junction boxes.

The sales of health supplements business and the sourcing
services of materials business are temporary suspended due
to change in direction of business strategy. Management has
dedicated more resources on developing manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes business following
the recovery from COVID-19.

Cost of sales and Gross Profit

Costs of sales mainly consists of (i) cost of raw materials and
trading products; (ii) manufacturing overheads; (iii) direct labour;
and (iv) crane hiring costs. The cost of sales slightly decreased
from approximately RM23.4 million for the year ended 31 May
2023 to approximately RM22.1 million for the year ended 31 May
2024, representing a decrease of approximately 5.37%.

The total cost of sales from the manufacturing and sale of
precast concrete junction boxes increased from approximately
RM18.7 million for the year ended 31 May 2023 to approximately
RM21.0 million for the year ended 31 May 2024, representing an
increase of approximately of 12.42%.

The Gross Profit increased from approximately RM6.9 million for
the year ended 31 May 2023 to approximately RM8.6 million for
the year ended 31 May 2024. The increase is mainly due to the
management is focussing on precast junction boxes with higher
profit margin and better control in expense.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWR DM

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
RM1.7 million or 38.74% from approximately RM4.3 million for
the year ended 31 May 2023 to approximately RM6.0 million for
the year ended 31 May 2024.

The Group’s administrative expenses mainly consisted of
salaries, welfare and other benefits, rent and rates, general
office expenses, depreciation and professional service fees. The
increase was mainly attributable to increase in staff cost and
director remuneration.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by
approximately RM0.13 million or 10.15% from approximately
RM1.23 million for the year ended 31 May 2023 to approximately
RM1.36 million for the year ended 31 May 2024. The increase
is mainly attributable to the increase in bonus, commission,
entertainment and travelling expenses in association with the
increase in revenue.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly consisted
of salaries, welfare and other benefits for sales and marketing
staff and travelling and entertainment expenses.

Profit for the year

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately RM108,000 for
the year ended 31 May 2024 (2023: RM88,000) due to the net
effect of (i) the increase in revenue for the year ended 31 May
2024; (ii) the decrease in cost of sales for the year ended 31
May 2024, and (iii) the increase in the administrative expenses
incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 May 2024.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
Operational risk

The Group’s operation is subject to general economic and
market risks which may affect the competition and profitability
of construction projects. The Group’s key risk exposures are
summarised as follows:

(@) Fluctuation in the prices of our major raw materials may
have adverse impacts on the Group's financial results;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWRE DN

(b) The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the
manufacturing and sale of precast concrete junction boxes
to its customers for infrastructure upgrades and expansion
work for construction projects, which are non-recurrent in
nature and there is no guarantee that the customers will
place new business purchase orders; and

(c) The Group's cash flow position may deteriorate due to a
mismatch between the time of receipt of payments from
its customers and payments to its suppliers if the Group is
unable to manage its cash flow mismatch properly.

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer
to the section headed “Risks Factors” in the prospectus of the
Group dated 6 July 2017 (the “"Prospectus”).

Financial risks

As a manufacturer of precast concrete junction boxes, the Group
has to purchase raw materials from its suppliers from time to
time based on its procurement policy. The Group relies on cash
inflow from its customers to meet its payment obligations to
our suppliers. The Group’s cash inflow is dependent on the
prompt settlement of its payments. As at 31 May 2024, the
Group recorded trade receivables amounting to approximately
RM8.6 million, the number of trade receivables turnover days
was approximately 106 days which exceeded the credit period
stipulated on the Group’s service agreements with its customers
with average trade payable turnover days of approximately
79 days. The Group is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk.
For further details, please refer to note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 May 2024, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents was
approximately RM28.2 million (31 May 2023: approximately
RM28.1 million).

As at 31 May 2024, the Group has no borrowings (31 May 2023:
Nil).

As at 31 May 2024, the Group's current ratio was 3.00 (31 May
2023: 3.61), which is calculated based on the total current assets
divided by the total current liabilities. The gearing ratio was Nil
as at 31 May 2024 and 31 May 2023, which is calculated based
on the total interest-bearing loans divided by the total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2024, the Group had no
bank borrowings. The Group’s financial position is sound and
strong. With available bank balances and cash and bank credit
facilities, the Group has sufficient liquidity to satisfy its funding
requirements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year. The share capital of the Group only comprises
of ordinary shares.

As at 31 May 2024, the share capital and equity attributable to
owners of equity of the Company amounted to approximately
RM6.0 million and approximately RM30.3 million respectively (31
May 2023: RM5.4 million and RM29.7 million respectively). Details
of the capital risk management are set out in the note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

On 2 May 2024, the Purchaser (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement with the Vendor pursuant to which the Purchaser
agreed to purchase and the Vendor agreed to sell, the land use
right of the Land at the Consideration of approximately RM7.95
million (approximately RM0.79 million has been paid as deposit).
For details, please refer to announcement dated on 2 May 2024
and the circular dated on 31 May 2024.

Save for disclosed above, the Group has no capital commitments
in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 May 2024 (31 May 2023: Nil).

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION
Since a substantial amount of income and profit of our Group is
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit (“RM"), any fluctuations in the
value of RM may adversely affect the amount of dividends, if any,
payable in HKD to our Shareholders. Furthermore, fluctuations
in the RM’s value against other currencies will create foreign
currency translation gains or losses and may have an adverse
effect on our Group’s business, financial condition and results
of operations. Any imposition, variation or removal of foreign
exchange controls may adversely affect the value, translated or
converted into HKD, of our Group's net assets, earnings or any
declared dividends. Consequently, this may adversely affect our
Group's ability to pay dividends or satisfy other foreign exchange
requirements. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHARGE OVER ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 May 2024, the Group had bank deposits pledged with
banks totalling approximately RM0.2 million (31 May 2023:
approximately RM1.1 million). These deposits were to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
As at 31 May 2024, the Company did not have any significant
investments held.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS,
AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

On 2 May 2024, the Purchaser (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement with
the Vendor pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to purchase,
and the Vendor agreed to sell, the land use right of the Land at
the Consideration of RM7,952,313.00. Details of which are set
forth on the announcement dated on 2 May 2024 and the circular
dated on 31 May 2024.

Save for disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during
the year ended 31 May 2024. There is no specific future plan
for material investments or capital assets as at the date of the
report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER
The shares of the Company were listed on 19 July 2017 (the
“Listing Date"”) on the GEM by a way of a public offer and
placing (collectively as the “Share Offer”) (the “Listing"). The
net proceeds received by the Company from the Share Offer,
after deducting underwriting fees and other expenses, were
approximately HK$29.6 million.

The net proceeds from the Listing have not been fully utilized up
to the year ended 31 May 2024 in accordance with the expected
timeline set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated on 2 May
2024, having considered the latest business environment and
development needs of the Group, the Board had resolved to
change the use of unutilised proceeds from the Share Offer.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The following table sets out the net proceeds from the Share
Offer, the reallocated unutilised proceeds and the utilised
amount up to the year ended 31 May 2024.

TREIIRMDBEERFTRFER - BENOEH
SHRIEREZEE20245A318 1

RE AT
FENCHATHE -

Utilised
Planned  Actual use of amount after
use of net  net proceeds Reallocated reallocation
proceeds from the Unutilised unutilised for the Utilised
fromthe Listing Date to proceeds up to proceedsasat  yearended proceeds upto Expected timeframe
Share Offer ~ 2May2024  2May2024  2May2024 31 May2024  31May 2024 forintended use
BLHRHZ EZ i HE
RMSEN 202485820 20245528 20245828 2024F5R31A EZ
FeFEREN  FETEREN HREA EFARN LEEENAR 204E5A31A
tHURE ERRE figsE RERMERE HNCBASE CBRAKERE ERRZNRONER
HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million
BERR BERR AERR AERR AERR AERR
Expansion of production BRUT A ERER
capacity through
) expandingour Bxisting () BREAZHEHR 70 (6.0) 10 - - -
Selangor Plant
(i) completing the (i) ZREUHERES 73 24) 19 - - -
establishment of our New FER
Kulaijaya Plant and
(i) recruiting new staffs (i) ARHET (Hio) 26 (22 04 08 02 06 Intended to use up the
(note b) remaining fund by
31 May 2005
R05E5 43184
REORETES
Acquisition of a parcel of land ~ WESREDHHNME 84 - 84 - - -
in Southern Malaysia
Expansion of our business ~ FAGEEREERLE 27 - 27 - - -
vertically i the Supply BafEniEss
chain of the precast ERREH
concrete junction box
industry through mergers
ana acquisitions
Expansion of our sales and~ BABERTEEERY 08 08) - - - -
marketing team
General working capital -hegLs 08 038) - - - -
Acquisition of land use right~ WEBERRSERSHH - - - 132 (13) 119 Intended to use Up the
of the Land in Selangor, RN HERE Note (¢) remaining fund by
Malaysia 31 May 2025
Hiete) BH05F5A31 85
REPEETES
Development cost of self-used % B BRENELA - - - 34 - 34 Intended to use up the
factory on the Land and TREERAERER remaining fund by
nurchase of equipment and 31 May 2025
fixtures
R0 A31R 3
REBRHTAS
06 (122) 174 174 (19) 159
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Notes:

(@)  The unused Listing proceeds have been deposited in licensed
banks in Malaysia and Hong Kong.

(b)  The funds have been utilized on recruiting and salaries of staffs
for the expansion and renovation works.

(c)  Being the deposit paid under the sale and purchase agreement
dated 2 May 2024 in relation to the acquisition of the land use right
in Selengor, details of which are set forth in the announcement of
the Company dated 2 May 2024 and circular dated 31 May 2024.

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2024, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2024, we had 69 employees who are located in
Malaysia and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
The Group generally recruits employees from the open market
by placing recruitment advertisements. The Group entered
into individual labour contracts with each of the employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Malaysia and
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, which cover
matters such as wages, employee benefits and grounds for
termination. The remuneration package that the Group offers to
the employees includes salary, bonuses, allowances and medical
benefits. In general, the Group determines a Director’s and an
employee’s salary based on the Director’'s and the employee’s
qualifications, experience and capability and the prevailing
market remuneration rate. The Group has designed a review
system to assess the performance of our employees once a year,
which forms the basis of our decisions with respect to salary
adjustments, bonuses and promotions. The long term incentive
scheme of the Group include a share option scheme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUND RAISING EXERCISE OF THE COMPANY

DURING THE PAST TWELVE MONTHS

Date of announcement
N GER:

7 June 2023
(completed on
16 June 2023)

202356 A7H

(A2023F6 H16B7TK)
27 June 2024

(completed on

17 July 2024)

202446 A278
(720247 A17B5ER)

16

Fund raising activity

SEEH

Subscription of news Shares
under general mandate
granted on 23 November
2022

BER202256 11 A23B E
B — I EREI RO

Subscription of news Shares
under general mandate
granted on 22 November
2023

RIEMN2023F11 A22B KR
B —RIRERB D

Net proceeds
to be raised Proposed use of

(approximately) net proceeds

KEMBRE MEREFHR
FE(NB) BERR

HK$1.02 million For repayment of
promissory note

102B8ET MIEEEALRR

HK$2.10 million For repayment of
promissory note

2108 8% T RIEEEANRE
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ARARBETZEARNNKEES

Actual use of
net proceeds
FERIAERE
BERAZE

Used as intended
(up to report date)

R{ERERiE
(BZHEAH)
Partially
(HK$0.48 million)
used as intended
and the remaining
has not been
utilized
(up to report date)
B (0.48HEBT)
R{ER T Rig KR e
B rARE A
(BEHEAH)
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING
PERIOD

On 2 May 2024 (after trading hours), the Purchaser (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with the Vendor pursuant to which the
Purchaser agreed to purchase, and the Vendor agreed to sell, the
land use right of the Land at the Consideration of approximately
RM7.9 million (the “Acquisition”). An extraordinary general
meeting was held on 18 June 2024 to approve the Acquisition,
the resolution was duly passed by shareholders.

On 27 June 2024 (after the trading hours), the Company entered
into the Subscription Agreement with the Subscriber, pursuant
to which the Company would allot and issue, and the Subscriber
would subscribe for an aggregate of 27,252,720 Subscription
Shares at the Subscription Price of HK$0.08 per Subscription
Share. The net proceeds from the subscription after deducting
related professional fees and related expenses are approximately
HK$2,100,000. The Share Subscription was completed on 17 July
2024.

On 2 August 2024, an ordinary resolution was passed on share
consolidation (“Share Consolidation”). According to the
resolution, every 10 issued and unissued existing shares of par
value HK$0.08 each in the share capital of the Company would be
consolidated into 1 consolidated share of par value HK$0.8 each.
The Share Consolidation became effective on 6 August 2024.

On 16 August 2024 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with the Vendor, pursuant
to which the Wanshun Technology Industrial Group Limited
(the “Vendor”) conditionally agreed to sell, and the Company
conditionally agreed to acquire, the entire equity interest of the
target company (a company to be incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability which will hold the entire equity interest
of a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China,
which in turn holds the entire equity interest of Shenzhen
Wanshunfu Smart Life Service Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Wanshunfu”). The consideration is HK$5.5 million and shall be
satisfied by way of issue of the promissory note by the Company
on the completion date. The consideration was determined by
the parties after arm’s length negotiations with reference to
the adjusted net asset value of Shenzhen Wanshunfu (assuming
reorganisation has taken place), which is approximately HK$5.53
million.

BEMREE

R202455 A28 (RBEFRE) - B (KR
2EWMBLRR) BETIIZLEE B - I
BEFRERREN/IBEESEHHEEZL RN
T fERE - BEHRE LG L E RE
(KB EIE |) - KRR RN2024F6 A 18H 1T
BRFRIRE AIE KB EIR - RAERD AR
RIEA @A -

M20245F6 2780 (R 5 1&) - ANA R R
BAGTLREBIRZE - Bl - NRaSEEE K%
17 MR AGRIES 27,252, 72008 R B i
7 RIBEAETRRERMO.OSET - RIES
BZFRFIBEFE (KR EFAEXEERA KA
BRI ) #9/42,100,0008 7T A% 10 3R B8 742024
F7R17BFEK -

MR2024F8R28 - BEERMHAH ((R©BE
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RNAEIEAFZ IR EIREEC.08E T E 1T
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BILHABARY - RMHDAEHE2024F8F6H B
e

20248 A16H (X 5 B B .) - & A &
BEHE M EE WS It wanshun
Technology Industrial Group Limited (&7 1)
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ZNE (—REREBEMALHER AR
BE KNP EARLMEGFMKZH AR
2EAAE - MZAAFERIBIEREELTE
REERAR (TRYBIERE]) A2 P E)
MEEMBE - REASSAESET BBR®
B A HI AN A T AT AL ZB S A -
RETVDHRITOTE2ZXYBIER (REEE
B5E) MEABREEFBERATFRERET
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Loh Swee Keong, aged 58, is the founder of the Group.
He was appointed to the Board on 28 October 2016 and is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall business strategy, approving annual
budget proposals, and major business decisions of the group. Mr.
Loh has over 20 years of work experience in the precast concrete
junction box industry. Mr. Loh completed his secondary school
from five level education in Tsung Wah National Type Secondary
School, Kuala Kangsar, Perak, Malaysia in November 1985.

Before establishing the group, Mr. Loh established a sole
proprietorship under the name Jackon Trading in 1989, where
he was primarily involved in the supply of ready-mix concrete to
construction companies in Malaysia. In March 1993, Mr. Loh co-
founded Target Precast, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group which was at that time primarily involved in the supply
of ready-mix concrete to construction companies, negotiating
business with customers and responsible for the daily operations
of the group. In 1995, Mr. Loh, for the first time, manufactured
the moulds using the then existing technology for precast
concrete junction boxes and commenced the production and
manufacturing of precast junction concrete boxes to customers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Ka Hei (BBZ1&), aged 42, was appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 27
June 2017 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and
the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Yau is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained
his Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration in Business
Economics from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2007. Mr. Yau has over 10 years experiences in accounting and
auditing.

He is currently the finance manager of a Hong Kong company,
which engages in energy trading business.
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Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert (F%E) , aged 64, graduated from
Pomona College, California, USA with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in 1983. Mr. Ma possesses extensive experience in corporate
banking and private banking in major USA and European financial
institutions. He was previously a vice president of a renowned
USA investment bank in Hong Kong. He is currently a general
manager of Incu Corporate Finance Limited, a consulting firm,
where he is responsible for office administration.

Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (E8F&) , aged 27, graduated from
University of Newcastle, United Kingdom with a Bachelor
of Science with Second Class (Division Il) Honours Business
Marketing in 2019. Between September 2019 and December
2021, he worked in various private companies as marketing
executive and business development manager. Since January
2022, he has joined a trading company which engaged in trading
of building materials in Hong Kong and China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Low Yew Kuan, aged 58, is the Head of Finance of the
Malaysia’s subsidiaries of the Group. He is responsible for the
daily operations and the financial and accounting activities of
the group. Mr Low obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration from the RMIT University, Melbourne in Jan 2001.
He was further admitted as a fellow of the Institute of Financial
Accountants in the United Kingdom in June 2005 and the Institute
of Public Accountants, Melbourne, Australia in June 2015. Mr
Low has over 30 years of experience in the manufacturing and
accounting field.

Before joining our Group in January 2018, Mr Low worked as
Accounts Manager in the Finance Division of Viscount Plastics
Industry Sdn Bhd for the period from February 1992 to May
2005. In June 2005, Mr Low joined Lam Seng Plastics Sdn Bhd
as Finance & Admin Manager. In May 2012, Mr Low worked as
Finance Manager of the Finance Department in KMC Packaging
Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of a Singaporean listed
company. He was later promoted as Acting General Manager
in year 2016. In 2016, Mr Low joined Crown Beverage Cans
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Crown which
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange) as Head of Finance.
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Mr. Leung Tze Wai (R F4&) , aged 41, was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 1 November 2018. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Commerce (Accounting) from the University of
Adelaide, Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the CPA
Australia and is currently the Finance Manager of the Company.
He has over 10 years’ experience in the auditing, accounting
and financial sectors.

Ms. Siew Poi Voon, aged 48 is the Factory Manager. She is
responsible for overseeing the manufacturing and operations of
the production activities of the Group. Ms. Siew joined the Group
as a Human Resource and Administration Executive in March
2013 and was promoted as our Assistant Factory Manager in
April 2015. Ms. Siew was subsequently appointed as our Factory
Manager in August 2016. Ms. Siew obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Human Development from the University Putra Malaysia in
July 2001.

From August 2001 to March 2003, Ms. Siew worked as the
Human Resource Officer of YP Precision (M) Sdn. Bhd. where
she was responsible for general human resource functions which
include payroll, training and development, recruitment as well
as matters pertaining to foreign workers in the company. She
subsequently joined the Delcol Water Solution Sdn. Bhd. in April
2003 as a Human Resource Executive. In December 2007, Ms.
Siew joined Jordone Corporation Sdn. Bhd. as a Human Resource
and Administration Executive. She was subsequently promoted
to the post of Assistant Administrative Manager in August 2009
where she was responsible for the company’s purchasing,
advertising and branding (including media and branding) as well
as general administration duties.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Board is pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 May 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group is principally engaged in (i) manufacturing
and trading of precast junction boxes, (ii) trading of accessories
and pipes and provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary
services in Malaysia (iii) sourcing services and (iv) sales of health
supplement products in Hong Kong.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations
of the Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which
the Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the
Shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 35 to 56 of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution by principal
business segments during the Year are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review of the Group for the year ended
31 May 2024 is set out in the section headed “"Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 6 to 7 and the business review and outlook
of the Group is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 17 of this annual
report. The discussion and analysis of the Group's performance
during the year and the material factor underlying its financial
performance and financial position are set out in “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 17 respectively.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2024 and
the state of the affairs of the Group as at that date are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on page 65.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 May 2024 (2023: Nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statement, is set out on page 164 on this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital and movements during
the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position and in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity set out on pages 69 respectively.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

As at 31 May 2024, the Company’'s reserve available for
distribution which consists of retained profit and the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company is RM21.2 million (2023: RM21.1
million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the law of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 May 2024.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that our employees, customers and
suppliers are key stakeholders to the Group’s success. The
Group strive to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging employees, providing quality products and services
to our customers, collaborating with suppliers to deliver
quality sustainable products and services and supporting our
community.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the top five customers together accounted for
approximately 21.70% of the Group’s revenue and the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 5.35% of the
Group's revenue.

During the Year, the top five suppliers together accounted for
approximately 54.09% of the Group’s purchases and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 15.99% of the
Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Directors were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yau Ka Hei

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (resigned on 15 November 2023)
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert

Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (appointed on 16 January 2024)

By virtue of Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin shall retire at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves
for re-election at the said meeting.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACT

The Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong has entered
into a service or an appointment contract with the Company for
a fixed term of three years, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ written notice served by either party
on the other, and is subject to termination provisions therein
and provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out
in Articles.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company for a fixed term of one to three years, which may be
terminated by not less than one month’s written notice served by
either party on the other, and is subject to termination provisions
therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as
set out in Articles.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
or an appointment letter which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographies details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 18 to 20.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS' REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individual's remuneration are set out in notes 6 and 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year and at any time during
the year ended 31 May 2024.
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INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance has been entered during the
year ended 31 May 2024 between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any its
subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 May 2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 May 2024.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and
the company through which he holds equity interests in the
Company, namely Merchant World Investments Limited, have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition with the Company on
27 June 2017. The details of the Deed of Non-Competition have
been disclosed in the Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed with the Company
that they had complied with the non-competition undertakings
during the year ended 31 May 2024. The Directors (including
the Independent Non-executive Directors) have reviewed and
confirmed the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
by the controlling shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float or not less than
25% of the Shares are in the hands of the public as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING BUSINESS OF DIRECTORS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 May 2024, none of the Directors, nor the controlling
shareholders of the Company and any of their respective close
associates has any interest in a business which competes or
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 May 2024, the interests and short position of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) as required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest and/or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii)
as required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Sections 352 of the SFO, or (iii)
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of
listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules
were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of the Company

Capacity/
Nature of Interest

50 BEME

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Note 2)
Loh Swee Keong %&£ (#fz2) SESEEER
Notes:

(1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares.

(2)  Merchant World Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Loh Swee Keong. Mr. Loh
Swee Keong is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Merchant World Investments Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Interest in controlled corporation
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Number of
issued ordinary
shares held/
interested
(Note 1)
e %]
ERZBRBT
EEREE
(Hiat1)

Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital of the
Company

BERT
BETRE
BRED

29,827,500 (L) 21.89%
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2) Merchant World Investments Limited&—% 7
EEEZBSFMKZIM AR - WhLoh Swee
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Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2024, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) as required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO), or (i) as required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or (iii) as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by Directors of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46
of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 May 2024, the following persons (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 and SFO were as follows:
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ORDINARY SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Capacity/Nature
of Interest

5 BEmME

Merchant World Investments Limited

Ms. Woon Sow Sum (Note 2)
Woon Sow Sum &+ (#1#2)

Greater Elite Holdings Limited (Note 3)
Greater Elite Holdings Limited (#/:%3)

Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul (Note 3)
ZERREE (B53)

Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina (Note 4)

Beneficial owner
BEmBEB A

Interest of spouse
[ ey

Beneficial owner
BEmBEB A

Interest in controlled corporation
RESEEE R

Interest of spouse

L

Mr. Choy Sheung Ki Gary

BELL (Kit4)

FCBfE et

Beneficial owner

EmiTet BEEBEAA
Notes:

(1

()

The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares.

Ms. Woon Sow Sum is the spouse of Mr. Loh Swee Keong and is
deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which Mr. Loh
Swee Keong has interest under the SFO.

Greater Elite Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the
BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul. Mr. Law Fung
Yuen Paul is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Greater Elite Holdings Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina is the spouse of Mr. Law Fung Yuen
Paul and is deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which
Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul has interest under the SFO.

KAREBER

Number of
Shares held/  Approximate
interested percentage of
(Note 1)  share holding

e %]
Bz RO EHE HE 4 B 4
(K1) Bot
29,827,500 (L) 21.89%
29,827,500 (L) 21.89%
23,510,100 (L) 17.25%
23,510,100 (L) 17.25%
23,510,100 (L) 17.25%
10,323,000 (L) 8.33%
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Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2024, the Company has
not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed
to have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to employees (full time and part time), or any member of the
Group, including any Executive, Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors, advisors, consultants of
the Group.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 27 June
2017 whereby the Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant
options to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for the shares
of the Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of the adoption
of the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue upon the
date of the shares of the Company listed on the GEM, being
62,000,000 shares (or such numbers of shares as shall result
from a subdivision or a consolidation of such 62,000,000 from
time to time) (the "Scheme Limit"). Subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting, the Board may (i) renew this limit
at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of the
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting; and/or (ii)
grant options beyond the Scheme Limit to Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Board.
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The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. No options shall be granted under any
schemes of the Company (including the Share Option Scheme)
if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to each Participants in
any twelve months period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue. Any further grant of options is subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such Eligible Participants and
his associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date
of grant to the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an options is HKD1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an
option at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall
be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily guotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
share.

As at 31 May 2024, no share option was granted, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
May 2024 was the Company, its or any of its holding companies
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and the Chief Executives (including their spouses
and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short
positions in the shares, or underlying shares, or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO).

THE ISSUE OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

Details of the Company's shares issued during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 May 2024, there are no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company (as defined under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules) which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the
significant related party transactions undertaken in the usual
course of business are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction, which needs to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Details of the retirement benefits plan of the Group as at 31
May 2024 are set out in the note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association
("Articles of Association”) of the Company, the applicable
laws and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in
the execution of their duties in their offices. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme are set out above, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked arrangement
during the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company recognised its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Company is
committed to the sustainable development of the environment
and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws
and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopted
effective environmental practices to ensure our business meet
the required standards and ethics in respect of environmental
protection.

DONATION
During the Year, the Group had made charitable and other
donation for approximately RM27,840 (2023: RM46,480).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors were independent during
their tenure during the Year.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2024
AGM to be held on Friday, 27 September 2024, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
24 September 2024 to Friday, 27 September 2024, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2024
AGM or any adjournment thereof, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investors Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 September 2024.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2024 have
been audited by McMillan who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of McMillan as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

SK Target Group Limited
Loh Swee Keong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 August 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the senior management of the Group is
committed to achieve a high standard of corporate governance,
to formulate good corporate governance practices for improving
the accountability and transparency in operations, and to
strengthen the internal control and risk management systems
from time to time so as to protect the rights of the shareholders
and enhance shareholder value. The Directors consider that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is crucial
for effective management, successful business growth and a
healthy corporate culture which in return benefits the Group’s
stakeholders as a whole.

The Board has adopted and save as disclosed in the following
paragraph complied with the principles and code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Directors will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices in order to enhance its corporate
governance standard, to comply with the increasingly tightened
regulatory requirements from time to time, and to meet the rising
expectation of shareholders and other stakeholders of the Group.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established.

Mr. Loh is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company. In view of Mr. Loh has been operating
and managing the operating subsidiaries of the Group since 1993,
the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to
have Mr. Loh taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. Therefore, the Directors consider that
the deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate
in such circumstance.

Save as disclosed above, during the year in the opinion of the
Directors, the Group has complied with the code provision of
the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry
of all the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards of dealings and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31 May 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four Directors, including one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and three
Independent Non-executive Directors who are Mr. Yau Ka Hei,
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert and Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin.

Mr. Loh Swee Keong is the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the
Board.

Pursuant to the announcement made by the Company on
15 November 2023, Mr. Chu King Ming (“Mr. Chu”) resigned
as an Independent Non-executive Director ("INED"”) of the
Company with effect on 15 November 2023. Following Mr. Chu’s
resignation, the Board comprised three members with one
Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors.
As a result, the number of INEDs fell below the minimum number
of three as prescribed under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Also, the Audit Committee only had two members which is below
the minimum number prescribed under Rule 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

In order to comply with the abovesaid GEM Listing Rules,
the Company identified Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin to fill up the
abovementioned vacancy on 16 January 2024, within three
months from 15 November 2023 and duly complied with
respective GEM Listing Rules. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 16 January 2024 for details.
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OVERALL ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability. The
Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith and
in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders and
fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills,
care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory
requirements. The Board has the full support from the Directors
and the senior management of the Company to discharge its
responsibilities.

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior
management are set out in the section headed with “Directors
and Senior Management Profiles” of this report.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s policies
and business plans, and monitoring internal controls and
performances. The overall management of the Company's
business is vested in the Board which assumes the responsibility
for promoting the success of the Company by supervising its
affairs. The Board focuses on formulating the Group’s overall
strategies, approving the annual development plan and budget;
monitoring financial and operating performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system and supervising the
management’s performance. Regarding the Group’s corporate
governance, the Board is responsible for performing following
duties:

(@) determine and review the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

(b)  review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and

(c) review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) toreview the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman of
the Board and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Loh is the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. In
view of Mr. Loh has been operating and managing the operating
subsidiaries of the Group since 1993, the Board believes that it
is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Loh taking up
both roles for effective management and business development.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from the CG
Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and setting out the approach to achieve
and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The ultimate
decision will be based on the merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

To meet the objectives of the Group’s Board Diversity Policy,
the Board consists of members with expertise in the precast
concrete junction box industry, accounting, internal control,
corporate finance and administration.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD BEEEEK
The Board delegates to the Management in respect of the major ZEEEHEREEERE N METENGISEE
corporate matters as stated below:

1. preparation of annual, interim and quarterly results of the 1. HEBHEETSHEIAEBFEE P
Group to be approved by the Board; R EEHEEA

2. execution of the corporate strategies and directions of the 2. HITRZBESHRM 2 AEE D EFRE KL
Group adopted by the Board; =N

3. implementation of sufficient systems of internal controls 3. EEFTREZAEEABEIL R RER
and risk management procedures of the Group; and BEERER &

4. carrying out daily business operations and decision- 4. HITHEEBKEE ULRAEBE 2B

makings of the Group, etc. BEBIELRES -
BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND EE28E  REAERER
PROCEDURES
The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings, ZE=&FHAMEH  MEHIE  HIEAR
it meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances. HrREAEZEREREE -

During the year, 8 Board meetings have been held for the HFR  BEEERIT TN @ Uil it A
discussion and approval of important matters such as the Z=E%4  hHi%E 2FXENRESER
approval of quarterly results, interim results, annual resultsand HHE - REEFRNHFEET S HNLHEN
dividends, etc. The attendance record of each Director during ' :

the year at Board meetings is as follows:

Number of

Attendance

Attended/

Eligible to

Attend

HE SER

Name of Director R E

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Loh Swee Keong Loh Swee Keong%t 4 8/8
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES

Mr. Yau Ka Hei BRE L& 8/8

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (resigned on 15 November 2023) REEBA %A (R2023F11 A15H B T) 4/4

Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert BHEERE 8/8

Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (appointed on 16 January 2024)  ZF&F %4 (FA2024E1 16 AEE(E) 2/2
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The Directors do not have any relationship (Including financial,
business, family or other material relationships) between
themselves.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Group has not established a corporate governance
committee and thus the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties set out in CG Code D.3.1 such
as reviewing and determining the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group, developing the Group's
policies, practices on corporate governance, training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior
management, the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary.
To enable all the Directors to participate in the meetings, the
Company ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at the Board meetings and receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner. Notice
of regular Board meetings is given to all Directors and they
can include matters for discussion in the agenda as they think
fit. Draft minutes of Board meeting shall be circulated to all
Directors for comments prior to confirmation of the minutes.
The signed minutes are kept by the Company Secretary. Every
Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
They are also entitled to have full access to Board documents
and related materials so that they are able to make an informed
decision.

Pursuant to article 108 (a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall
be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin shall retire
at the 2024 AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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The biographical details of above mentioned Directors proposed
to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” on pages 17 to 19 of this annual report.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles. Each Independent Non-executive
Directors is required to inform the Group as soon as practicable
if there is any change that may affect his/her independence.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independency
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers these Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant, the Directors are encouraged to
participate in professional development courses and seminars
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.
During the year ended 31 May 2024, the current Board members
participated in the following training programs:

BN EERRAFAE LERETINE
ECBREFBERAFREVVEVAEER
SREEE[N] -

BYIERTESNIRETAHERT - AR
BRI R (AR T R EIEET o 0B IR ] B
SEEBYMNES  SEULIENTESER
PEAITER TRIRBAAER - NARIERE
ﬁ%é%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%*ﬁﬁ%GEMtﬁ%ﬁE'J%S09
BEINFEBLMERRE  BARERE
EWUIENTEEHBE AL -

FEERRRE
RERES—EHEAREEEARIANEN
BERTHESRFELER  ARRSBERS
REXRARIERFNE - WEERBRES
ERLTARNEENAG B RBEZ MR
Kkt - BE202455A3HILFE - HEE
EEREELETIIEIIES

Training on

corporate governance,
regulatory updates

on disclosable
transactions

and connected

transactions

ﬁEﬁfE%%‘i‘ﬁ >
HEEFATHEERS

Name of Directors BER S W aJII

Executive Director HITES

Loh Swee Keong Loh Swee Keong Vv

Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES

Chu Kin Ming (resigned on 15 November 2023)  4kfZBEF (FA20234E11 A 158 &t v
£)

Yau Ka Hei EBRIE v

Ma She Shing Albert S&HE v

Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (appointed on 16 January 2024) Z3F#F 54 (7A2024F 18168 Vv
BEE)
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Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws,
rules and regulations.

Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (“Mr. Kwok"”) obtained legal advice from
a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as
regards the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules that are
applicable to Mr. Kwok as a director of the Company and the
possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving
false information to the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2024. Mr.
Kwok confirmed he understood his obligations as a director of
the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The
terms of reference of the Board’s committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange and
are available to shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Committee on 27 June 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to
5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Ma, She
Shing Albert and Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Hei.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the followings:

(@) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor, and be
primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal,
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(b)

to review with the Group’s management, external auditors
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s policies
and system regarding internal controls (including financial,
operational and compliance controls), risk management
system and any statement by the Directors of the Company
to be included in the annual accounts prior to endorsement
by the Board;

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company's
financial statements and the annual, quarterly and interim
financial reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them prior to approval
by the Board, with particular focus on:

(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(ili)  significant adjustment resulting from the audit/review;

(iv) the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with the accounting and auditing
standards; and

(vi) compliance with the listing requirements on the GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

Oversee the issuer’s financial reporting system, the risk
management and the internal control systems;

(i) to review the Company’s financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board
risk committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

(i) to review arrangements employees of the Group can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters. The Committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;
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(il) to review the draft representation letter prior to
approval by the Board;

(iv) to discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an
effective system. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
issuer’'s accounting and financial reporting function;

(v) to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings; and

(vi) to assess the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control.

For the year ended 31 May 2024, 4 meetings have been held
for the Audit Committee and all the members of the Committee
attended the meetings. The Group’s quarterly, interim and annual
results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27
June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph B.1
of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists
of one Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei
and Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Hel.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for the
followings:

(@) to consult the chairman of the Board and/or the chief
executive of the Company (where applicable) about their
remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors. The
Committee should have access to independent professional
advice if necessary;

(b) review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

(c) either (i) determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; or (ii) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. This should include benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;
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(d) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

(e) consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;
and

(f)  review and approve compensation payable to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that
it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive.

For the year ended 31 May 2024, two meetings have been
held for the Remuneration Committee and all the members
of the Committee attended the meeting to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
the remuneration packages of the Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors)
by bands for the year ended 31 May 2024 are as follows:
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The Group determines an Director’'s emolument based on each
Director’'s qualifications, experience and capability and the
prevailing market remuneration rate.

The emolument payable to Directors depends on their respective
contractual terms under the service contracts and the
appointment letters, and as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ emolument are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees required to be disclosed under Rule
18.30 of the GEM Listing Rules have been set out in notes 6 and
7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on 27
June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee currently consists of
one Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei
and Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Mr. Loh Swee Keong.

The main roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include the followings:

(@) review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;
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(c) assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors of the Company and succession
planning for Directors of the Company, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of
the Company; and

(e) have a policy concerning diversity of Board members,
review the policy and the progress on achieving the
objectives set for implementing the policy and should
disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the
corporate governance report annually.

For the year ended 31 May 2024, two meetings have been held
for the Nomination Committee and all the members of the
Committee attended the meeting to review the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, the structure, size
and Composition of the Board and the Board diversity policy
adopted by the Company.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to identify candidates to
become a member of the Board and to make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of candidates nominated for
directorships. The Board shall be composed of members with
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to accomplish the Group’s business development,
strategies, operation, challenges and opportunities. The core
criteria for selection include gender, age, cultural and education
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry and regional experience, number of directorship in
other listed/public companies and in case of Independent Non-
executive Directors, the number of years they have already
served. According to the nomination procedure, the Nomination
Committee is responsible for identifying potential new Directors
and recommends to the Board for decision. The appointment
shall be subject to the approval by the Board in accordance
with the Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and the
Nomination Policy.
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2024 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2024 FRRBERE

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.7 of the CG code, the IRIEMHEEASTAISFRNENEA671& B IE
Independent Non-executive Directors should attend general #ifTE=FREERRERASITHBRENEIEL
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the visions  IEBEf o 2023411 A22H £8 17 1920244 A%
of shareholders. At the 2024 annual general meeting held on 22 FEFEAE L FIAEBYIENTEETHCDLE
November 2023, all the Independent Non-executive Directors K& -

attended the meeting.

For the year ended 31 May 2024, the attendance record of each  # E2024F5A31B IEFE @ KFEENHER
Director is set out in the table below: BREA TR

Number of attendance/number of meetings
Name of Directors for the year ended 31 May 2024
EEpE HZ202455A31H LEENHERY /X H
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee = Committee = Committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting

=g EREES FHWZzEEE REZEE
=f = =f = REAE

Executive Directors

YTES
Mr. Loh Swee Keong 8/8 N/A 2/2 2/2 11
Loh Swee Keong %4 TER

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Yau Ka Hei 8/8 4/4 2/2 2/2 171
BRELE

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (resigned on 15 November 2023) 4/4 3/3 11 N/A 0/0
KEBHEAE (R2023F11A158 BHT) TEm

Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert 8/8 4/4 11 2/2 11
BHRELE

Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (appointed on 16 January 2024) 2/2 0/0 N/A N/A 0/0
DFEEE (R2024E1F16BEZT) TiEA TiEA
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in preparing the
Group's consolidated financial statements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of
affairs, results and cash flows and in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards and principles and the disclosure
requirements under applicable laws and regulations in Hong
Kong.

The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated
financial statements prepared by the Board and to report their
opinion to the shareholders of the Company. The statements by
the external Auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited,
about their reporting responsibility on the financial statements
of the Group are set out in the independent auditor’s report on
pages 57 to 64 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control and risk management systems and for monitoring their
effectiveness to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
assets of the Group. The internal control system of the Group
aims to facilitate efficient operation which in turn reduces the
risks to which the Group is exposed. The internal control and
risk management systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the
Group’s business objectives.
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The Group recognises that effective risk management is essential
for the long-term development on the Group’s business. The
management is responsible for establishing, implementing
and reviewing the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. The Audit
Committee will periodically review the Group’s compliance
status with the Hong Kong laws and will perform its functions
by (i) reviewing the internal control and legal compliance; (ii)
discussing the internal control systems with the management
of the Group to ensure that the management has performed
its duty to have an effective internal control system and (iii)
considering the major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or its own initiative and
the management’s response to these findings. While taking
into full account of the new requirements effective from the
Listing Date under the GEM Listing Rules brought by Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited relating to risk management
and internal control, the management has formulated the
risk management and control framework. All employees are
committed to implement the risk management framework into
the daily operation.

In addition, there is no internal audit function within the
Group and the Group engaged an independent internal control
consultant (“Internal Control Consultant”) to conduct an
annual review for the year ended 31 May 2024 of the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems in
various material aspects including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Based upon the recommendations from
the Internal Control Consultant, the Group has taken remedial
actions. Further, in order to continuously improve the Group's
corporate governance in the future the Group will adopt the
measures recommended by the Internal Control Consultant.

Based on the result of the reviews as mentioned above, it is
considered that proper internal control and risk management
systems are in place and implemented effectively.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION BREET I £

For the year ended 31 May 2024, the remuneration paid or #EHZE2024F5A318 tFE - AEBEFETE
payable to McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited in respect  #ZREMIEEZRFENHELNES (BH)
of the statutory audit services and non-audit services for the &:FRISEEAERATOESIT ¢

Group are as follows:

Fee paid/

Nature of Services payables

1t B

RIEHE K H

HKDO0O0O

FHExT

Audit services EZR% 893

Non-audit services IEEZ R -
DIVIDEND POLICY B SR

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide ARAERMH—EROEE - EEREFER
guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are & MRS IR KRR S K i F A M

to be declared and paid to the shareholders and the level of BIKFRRHIES] -
dividend to be paid.

Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a RIRA SN - R E R T R B IR ARE S B
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall ERS G - EFEREE (AR aE) N

take into account, among others, TEHE

e financial results; o UITSEAE

e cash flow situation; o BMeREMR

e Dbusiness conditions and strategies; o RBRKIRES

e future operations and earnings; o RERZBEREAM

e  capital requirements and expenditure plans; o AEHKEIWEE

. interests of shareholders; o JRERER

e any restrictions on payment of dividends; and o RMBE AR &

e any other factors that the Board may consider relevant. s EFEUHRR/EBIEAMEMARE -
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The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board
and is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the GEM Listing Rules, the laws of
Hong Kong and the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and any other applicable laws and regulations. The
Company does not have any predetermined dividend distribution
ratio.The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may
not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in the
future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Tze Wai was appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company on 1 November 2018. All Directors have access to
the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Mr. Leung
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the year ended 31 May 2024. The biographical details of
Mr. Leung are set out under the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 17 to 19 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and
rights, separate resolutions can be proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.
All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the website of The Stock Exchange and
the Company’s website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meetings (“EGM")

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The following procedures for shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting are subject to the
Articles (as amended from time to time), and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules (as
amended from time to time):

(@)

o4

EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition (the “Requisition”), not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings (the “Eligible
Shareholders”). Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two Months
after the deposit of such requisition;

The Eligible Shareholders must deposit the Requisition to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 1406-08, 14/F, Austin Tower, 22-26 Austin
Avenue, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or to Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Board and/or the Company Secretary;,

If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information
are posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with
any enquiries.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in
the preceding paragraph.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may raise questions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors and management of the Company. Such questions,
requests, comments and suggestions can be addressed to
the Company by post to Room 1406-08, 14/F, Austin Tower,
22-26 Austin Avenue, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or via
telephone at (852) 3702 5315.

Should there are any enquiries and concerns from shareholders,
they may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investors Services Limited, by post to 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852)
2980 1333. Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for the prompt
response from the Company if it deems appropriate.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a shareholders communication
policy between itself and its shareholders, and investors which
aims to set out the principles of the Company in relation
to the shareholders’ communications, with the objective of
ensuring timely, transparent and accurate communications
between the shareholders of the Company and the Company.
These include answering questions through the annual general
meeting, the publication of annual, interim and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars, the Company’s website
at www.sktargetgroup.com and meetings with investors and
shareholders. News update of the Group’s business development
and operation are also available on the Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
there has been no changes in the Company’s Constitutional
documents. A copy of the Company’s updated Constitutional
Documents is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. Directors, senior management and employees of the
Group who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company are subject to dealing restrictions in securities
of the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. Any inside
information and any information which may potentially constitute
inside information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated
to the Board and for the Board to decide on the need for
disclosure. Inside information and other information which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules will
be announced on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %R RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SK
TARGET GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 65 to
163, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 May 2024, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 May 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

24/F., Siu On Centre, BB

188 Lockhart Road, B

Wan Chai, 5% 503818855

Hong Kong KL 02448
BInRaEEAERAT
2RBRRNBILHMRE

(RESHSEME LA BFRLA)

=
HPEBERFESE1BEMERBREERA
A ([BEAR]) MEWBAR (5 [BEE])
MEEMBEHRE  REHRAVMBHRREER
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LHFEENGEEEEtEmKRER  HEE
HEPRNGERSRER  ULRAHMER
KM (BREXGHERREMEE) -

BMRE - REMBHREREBERE S 2R
BEe (ARG EABREY]) BHHOBEE
B mEER ((ERMEREER]) 5EM
FEhRE BEEBER2024F5831HKEE
PEMRRAARBEZ A I FENGEAMIEERR
REFERESREWERIBES R KA KRR
MELRRE -

miREBARLD T /2024 F£3]

57



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified is
impairment assessment of trade receivables.
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B B A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

5 WK E R G

FARELEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EMNERNMEERRERSEE

Refer to notes 3 (g)(v), 4, 18, 28(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

B2 A MWK 3RV ~ 4~ 18~ 28(b) °

As at 31 May 2024, the Group's gross trade
receivables is approximately RM14,765,000 and
out of those trade receivables approximately
RM7,548,000 were past due.

M2024F5A318 © ESBE s ESEWHRIBBENL
14,765,0009 5 + B EF#)7,548,0008 EHE Z FE I
SRIEE A o

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s allowances for ECL on
trade receivables as at 31 May 2024 amounted to
approximately RM6,181,000.

WM& B RERMTIBH I E © & & B R20245F
SAMEME SRR FENTHHREEERBEENAR
6,181,000% % °

The trade receivables net of allowance was
RM8,584,000, which represented approximately 17%
of total assets of the Group.

2 5 U R IE (0 B B ) /28,584,000 & 4
h EEEREEMITY% -

As disclosed in note 28(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the
Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of
trade receivables based on estimated loss rate,
which is determined based on the management’'s
assessment on information including credit profile
of different customers or debtors, ageing of the
trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant
customers or debtors, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, and any forward-looking
information without undue cost or effort, including
time value of money where appropriate.

Wi e BB mAMET28(0) ik - EXEETIEERE
HEEEXEHEIRURIEN S HEREEEES
BOMAGAEEEDREEEBRHIARTEPREBHA
HEEER BHEWBFKENERR FLEHEDH
BELEEBR  AEEHRENENERGH RSN
REHBEZEPAEHEANBER HUERFEHNTM
MEE  REEBARENEZUREZNEBAZ K
Kok 23 H BN ES M EMBIEEER (BEEEEREE
B (EE)) #HE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:
HMBME S ERRFIBEREN ENEFBRTE

Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables;
BREEEMTE S EWFIEEERE 2 AReE
HHE

Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowances on
trade receivables as at 31 May 2024, including
their identification of credit-impaired trade
receivables, and the basis of estimated loss
rate such as customers’ credit risk grading
dependent on the customers’ financial
performance, historical loss rates and forward-
looking information;
ERnEREETN2024F58318BME 5 R IE
EEEEREBCERLAE  2EREHEERE
BHRWHIBZHANARBAMLTEEE (NRTF
BEFMBRER  BELEBRELAEEEHAENE
PEERRBITR) 2 &%k

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables in
notes 18 and 28(b) to the consolidated financial
statements;

A AR A B SRR M 18 KR 28(0) R B A E 5 FEUR
TERERT M H R

Testing subsequent settlements of credit-
impaired trade receivables, on a sample
basis, by inspecting supporting documents in
relation to cash receipt from trade receivables
subsequent to the end of the current reporting
period;

BBREERMETHNEEEE ZERFIENE K
HIERMEAREEDREZE S EWRFIENEE
(EXDIE
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BB RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 I W R R R (B FE G

BEREZEE (£)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EMNEBERNNEERREREE

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables to the Group’s
consolidated financial position and the involvement
of subjective judgement and management estimates
in evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL")
of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

AREZRERKFEY BSEGEGMBURICEZN
R s ESEEBEZEBFIERREBHRNERE
BEEE ((EHEEFR) RIELNTEBHERERE
HEr MPIKE ZERWGIBREN G#A ABEHREZ
£IF o

Obtaining and reviewing the assessment
prepared by the external professional valuer
engaged by the management, with the
assistance of our valuation specialists; and
BEERHEMANEEER G TEHHERELRE
BN EB R S (L ERD T AR BV RT 1 ¢ &%

Assessing the qualifications, experience and
expertise of the external professional valuer
engaged by the management and considered its
objectivity and independence.

A EEEMEREIISEEGLEMNER KRN
HEMG - TERETHUENMBE L -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND

AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

EERBERZEERAS
AENERE

M |RA

EFAREREBEER S EREESRMNE
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chun Sing

Practisting Certificate Number P05537

Hong Kong

29 August 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRERAEtEE RS X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2024
HE2024 55 A3 BIEEE

2024 2023

20245 20234
Notes RM’'000 RM'000
et ] &%

Revenue e A 5 30,681 30,301
Cost of sales $HE Bk A (22,122) (23,378)
Gross profit ER 8,559 6,923
Other income H g A 963 971
Allowance for credit loss, net FEEEREFE (870) (1,530)
Administrative expenses THAX (5,977) (4,308)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (1,356) (1,231)
Finance costs BbE A AR 8 (133) 97)
Share of results of an associate DE—HEEEAREE 16 61 90
Profit before taxation B 35 BT ) 9 318
Taxation el 10 (730)
Profit for the year FREF 33
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEUA
ltem that may be reclassified HigmgeEmoms
subsequently to profit or loss: B&=rIEE
Exchange differences arising HMEGINESEE
on translation of foreign HIFE 5 =58
operations 405
Total comprehensive income for FRE2ERALLE
the year 493
(Restated)
(&=5))
Earnings per share: FREF
Basic and diluted EARRES 11
(RM cents) (== 0.72

The notes on pages 71 to 163 form an integral part of these HF71E163B M BRI EHRA M BEHRERN —
&

consolidated financial statements. b

WREEARAT /2024 £ 65



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRREK

AS AT 31 MAY 2024
202445 A 31H

Notes
Kzt
Non-Current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MR 13
Investment property AW 15
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 14
Investment in an associate REEE N R HIRE 16
Total Non-Current Assets ERBEEMLEE
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17
Receivables, deposits and JEWERIA ~ e Kk
prepayments TERTK 18
Amount due from ultimate holding JE IR B 4% IR R B IR
company 19
Amount due from a shareholder JiE U B% B8 7R 19
Tax recoverable a7 U [ % 18
Short-term bank deposits EHRTTIE X 20
Cash and bank balances Re RIBIT4HEH 20
Total Current Assets REEEHTE
Current Liabilities REBAE
Payables and accrued charges JES B K ERTE A 21
Lease liabilities HEAFE 22
Tax payables FES IR
Promissory note L ER 24
Total Current Liabilities FREBEEHEHE
Net Current Assets ERBEE
Total Assets Less Current HEERRBAE

Liabilities
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2024
20245
RM’'000

A+
<=

1,800

12,485

40

35

10
21,089
7,142

42,601

10,145
405
218

3,446

14,214

28,387

36,393

2023
20234
RM’'000

Fok

3,889
353
995

3,334

8,571

2,004

11,863

44

12

89
21,247
6,828

42,087

11,033
625
13

11,671

30,416

38,987




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRK

AS AT 31 MAY 2024
202445 A 31H

2024 2023
2024% 20234

RM’'000 RM’000

A= AN =
<8 FT<5

Non-Current Liabilities FREBAE

Lease liabilities HEaE 22 405
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE & E 23 131
Promissory note A EE 24 3,276
Total Non-Current Liabilities FREBEELEE 3,812
Net Assets BEE 35,175
Capital and Reserves EAREE

Share capital f& A< 25 5,438
Reserves s 26 29,737
Total Equity ERBEHE 35,175

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 163 were SN FE71E163E B4R E MK C 122024F8
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on ~ A29F BB F&#/EW K#ETIE - WhH T5E

29 August 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: EREREE
Loh Swee Keong Yau Ka Hei
BXRE
Director Independent Non-Executive Director
EF HUINTEF

The notes on pages 71 to 163 form an integral part of these F712163B BRI EHRE M BHRERN —
z

consolidated financial statements. i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREZB B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2024
HE2024 5 A3 BIEEFEE

Share Share Other  Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses
i RiEE Rfhfte EXfE By {5
(note 25) (note 26(a)) (note 26(b)) (note 26(c))
i‘ ) (E2e) (KR
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
TLE 25
At 1 June 2022 120225618 4,501 27,228 8,579 (355) (7,039) 32914
Profit for the year EREH - - - - 88 88
Exchange differences arising  #EEHEREEH
on translation of foreign EHER
operations - - - 405 - 405
Total comprehensive income  ERZANAEE
for the year - - - 405 88 493
Placing (note 25(a) REZH (Hi2290) 937 831 - - - 1,768
At 31 May 2023 #2023F5R31H 5438 28,059 8,579 50 (6,951) 35,175
At 1 June 2023 120236 1R 28,059 (6,951)
Profit for the year ERER = 108
Exchange differences arising ~ #EBHERELH
on translation of foreign EHES
operations
Total comprehensive income  ER2ERALLE
for the year
Issue of subscription shares BRI EEBRETRE
by newly allotted ordinary B (Hi250))
shares (note 25(b) 15 605
At 31 May 2024 #2024F5R318 28,074 (6,843) 36,298

The notes on pages 71 to 163 form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2024
HZE 202455 831 HILFE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RM’'000 RM’'000

A+ A=
<A ~< A

OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Profit before taxation PR %50 Al ) 318
Adjustments for: MATSEELFE

Depreciation of: AT EBEITE -

Property, plant and equipment W - S M 638

Investment property HEYE 4

Right-of-use assets FRREEE 625

Allowance for credit losses, net EEBERB TR 1,530
Finance costs Bh & B AN 97
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - BMEEEED

plant and equipment (Uez),/ K518 74

Share of results of an associate A —FSE N T 4 (90)
Unrealised losses on foreign REIRHME B8
exchange 75
Interest income FEHA (657)
Operating profit before working capital & iE& & & &hEiH & &) H
changes 3,114
Movements in working capital: EEESHED
Decrease/(increase) in: TEEERD (M) -
Inventories FE 1,131
Receivables, deposits and FEMFRIA ~ e RIBRK
prepayments (4,105)
(Decrease)/increase in: TFEE CRL),/ & -

Payables and accrued charges FE A 3R IE K BT & B 3,914
Net cash generated from operations @SS %58 4,054
Income tax paid [=ENIZIEC! (651)
Net cash generated (used in)/from KEES (FTA),/ sHE

operating activities B 3,503

WM EMAR AT / 2024 F3 69



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREIRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2024
HE2024 5 A3 BIEEFEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RM’000 RM’000
<HE F&£&
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REETE
Interest received 2 HRLE 657
Purchase of property, plant and BEDE  BELXRE
equipment (297)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HE®E  BERZREY
plant and equipment Fri5 s 1E 57
Decrease/(increase) in pledged short- B EARITER
term bank deposits A () (17)
Advance to a shareholder A — B AR R = K (M
Advance from/(to) ultimate holding Lg=] Eifﬂ e UNCIDACER T3
company A BIEL) B9EEK )
Net cash generated from investing WEEEMSRESFE
activities 390
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FT1S 5IR 1,768
Finance costs paid B E AR (10)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 AHEE 2 BARIEH (601)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEfHEEZF 25D (56)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTA),/ FERE
financing activities HEE 1,101
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBEEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS BFE 4,994
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RS RBELZEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 21,687
Effects of exchange differences HEH N2 267
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT £XRELRBELZEEY
END OF YEAR (note 20) (K15£20) 28,019 26,948
The notes on pages 71 to 163 form an integral part of these  #71E163B M sT A It S5 A B ME I —

consolidated financial statements. 2o o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

SK Target Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 28 October
2016 and its ordinary shares are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
since 19 July 2017. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business are Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, P.0. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands and 18, Jalan LP 2A/2, Taman Lestari
Perdana, 43300 Seri Kembangan, Selangor Darul Ehsan,
Malaysia, respectively.

Merchant World Investments Limited (“Merchant World"),
a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate holding company
of the Company. Mr. Loh Swee Keong, is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company who wholly owns
Merchant World.

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and trading of precast concrete junction boxes, trading
of accessories and pipes and provision of mobile crane
rental and ancillary services in Malaysia, sourcing service
of materials in Hong Kong. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiary companies are set out
in note 31.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSS") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("IASB") to these consolidated financial statements
for the current accounting period:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and IFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Mode Rules

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

For the new and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue
but not yet effective, please refer to note 37.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazette the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “"Amendment
ordinance”), which will come into effect from 1 May 2025
(the "Transition Date"”). Once the Amendment Ordinance
takes effect, an employer can no longer use any of the
accrued benefits derived from its mandatory contributions
to mandatory provident fund (“MPF"”) scheme to reduce the
long service payment (“LSP”) in respect of an employee’s
service from the Transition Date (the abolition of the
"offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect
of the service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately before
the Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.
In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong"” that provides accounting guidance relating
to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the
mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates that
entities may account for the accrued benefits derived
from mandatory MPF contributions that are expected to
be used to reduce the LSP payable to an employee as
deemed contributions by that employee towards the LSP.
However, applying this approach, upon the enactment of
the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer
permissible to apply the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of IAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
contributions to be recognised as reduction of service
cost (negative service cost) in the period the contributions
were made, instead these deemed contributions should be
attributed to periods of service in the same manner as the
gross LSP benefit.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism (continued)

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of
the offsetting mechanism, the Group has changed its
accounting policy in connection with its LSP liability and has
applied the above HKICPA guidance retrospectively. The
cessation of applying the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of IAS 19 in conjunction with the enactment of the
Amendment Ordinance resulted in a catch-up profit or
loss adjustment in June 2022 for the service cost up to
that date and consequential impacts on current service
cost, interest expense and remeasurement effects from
changes in actuarial assumptions for the rest of 2022, with
the corresponding adjustment to the comparative carrying
amount of the LSP liability. This change in accounting policy
did not have any material impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1 June 2022. It also did not have a material impact
on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
May 2023 and 31 May 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
IFRSS, which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as “the Group”) are
disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
2 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 May 2024 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Items included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). These
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM"), rounded to the nearest
thousand (RM'000), unless otherwise stated. RM is
the Company's functional currency and the Group’s
presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

76

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major source of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 3. EXRSHEBE &)
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (b) &4tE%E

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary companies. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary company begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
company and ceases when the Group loses control
over the subsidiary company. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary company acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary
company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of a subsidiary company to bring
its accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment

78

The following items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 3 (h)):

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where
the Group is the registered owner of the
property interest (see note 3 (i));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying
plant and equipment (see note 3 (i)).

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2024

3.

EXRSTTHERE (@)

(c)

ME - BERRE

T9% - BFER&HEE (2
TRERIN TIERAR L RFHTE
FoRfEERYIRR (RHEE3N)

- MHERAzIHREFE
s AAKERZENE R
maEmEA A (M) -

- NHERAZWEAAKHE
NEIFTE LY ES: SR
BAFMEEMEREEE
K

- RBELERHEERE BFEHAH
ERREBHEHEMELNRE
REEE (RHEE) -

HRITERAEREEEENMAET
AT {50 P A B PO 88 EL A AR EL U B4
BfE - At A EREH - FRER
RAFTETEORNERE MRE 7
A MG A ZBREE AR
SENFR e

WE - BELRREBRERNEERK
BHETRAZEERPISEL
ERPR R BN R 5 4R TR - 1)
% BB MEREHEB RN S mE
RELNERAE  HIRHERF
FREZEENRAEMEHNE
BT YARBETHER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

(e) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average cost method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

(f) Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(f)

80

Investment in an associate (continued)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is or the
portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Any retained portion of
an investment in an associate that has not been
classified as held for sale continues to be accounted
for using the equity method. The financial statements
of associates used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have been
made to conform the associate’s accounting policies
to those of the Group. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. Changes in net assets of
the associate other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’'s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Investment in an associate (continued)
An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(f)

82

Investment in an associate (continuead)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of the
relevant interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(g)

Investment in an associate (continued)
When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

84

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross earning amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 including receivables and deposits,
amount due from ultimate holding company, amount
due from a shareholder, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the management'’s
assessment on the individual customer’s credit
risk grading dependent on the customer’s financial
performance, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial asset measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

(iy  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed as at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without resources by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

. failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

. an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

3.

B BHRME

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

88

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’'s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subseguent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information.

Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

90

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the group entities are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

The Group's other financial liabilities including
payables and accrued charges are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the considerations paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that

use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

92

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 3. EABIHBEHE &)
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued) (h)y HEEE &)
(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) #HEREHBEAE)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease MEEBERCR R A%
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which BENREKNAGE - 21
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability HEBBEVHRESEMALH
plus any lease payments made at or before the g A 2 AIEL M
commencement date, and any initial direct costs ERF - A RPTS BRI (A
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right- WM EERA - @ER -« F
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs AEEEEMATEEE AR
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset BEMEHFBRBBEES
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on B B E M TR -
which it is located, discounted to their present WRZEERE  BAEMAE R
value, less any lease incentives received. The HERE TRAEEEHRE
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost TR RETITE RBES
less accumulated depreciation and impairment B (7 5E3(c) &%3(h))
losses (see notes 3(c) and 3(h)), except for the MEA TR R A EE ER
following types of right-of-use asset: Hh -

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition - TEREMEERZE
of investment property in accordance with F# & E AR R N 5E3(d)
note 3(d); and AR &

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold - HAETHREFEH
land and buildings where the Group is the WEREEE (R&EE
registered owner of the leasehold interest BREEEENEMES
are carried at cost in accordance with note A) B Bt 5E3(0)IE X
3(c). AFIER o

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits IR A58 A IR SH P AN 51 BR

is accounted for separately from the right-of-use MEBKESFRENG TR

assets in accordance with the accounting policy K AREBESESNYEG
applicable to investments in debt securities NEERERABEESIFHA
carried at amortised cost (see notes 3(g) and IR (RPIFE3(9) K3(m)) - #l4a

3(m)). Any difference between the initial fair AT EEZRSEHECHANE

value and the nominal value of the deposits A Z5 - 5 AEINEER K

is accounted for as additional lease payments AR WEAFRAEEERK

made and is included in the cost of right-of-use ARAR o

assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

94

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
met the conditions set out in paragraph 468 of
IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has
taken advantage of the practical expedient not
to assess whether the rent concessions are
lease modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2024

3.

EXRSTTHERE (@)

(hy HEEE @)

(M

ERFEBEA (&)
EARBENRAX —EH
R REHMEE - HEAN
SEBEHRERNAEEER
M ENNEREE  RE
EMFEAKEREL AR
BEMSITERBE  BHEIK
HEEEMELESY  AE
EMFEHERGE - RIS
AEHMAEHEREBR &
FR#EENREE/IERE
HE - NHERAREENR
HEDRES  AIREBEREA
518

EESBEEESLRAE
ERRETERENHER
BEES L ((HEBHR]) -
BXREAEBNHEEAR
W AN EHHESEETT
BEFE - EREBR M
EBERELEBITNHEEN
RAMBERR - FALER]
MBI RE SR ERBEH
& - ECOVID-19ZBmME
BEEENBESRE  HEE
B B B 7% R 2RI 281655 A8
EFABEETE MG HER T
BIER TN - EZEZBR
T AEEEMAERER
FETHHHASRERE A
EBNR  TRBERSR
P8 B R E A BRI R
BEERAREZHAATE
FAERR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property and lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with note 3(m).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption, then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(i)

)

(k)

96

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other receivables
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. All receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method
and including an allowance for credit losses (see
note 3(g)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 3(g), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLS in
accordance with the policy set out in note 3(g).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(1

Revenue

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(1)

98

Revenue (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and non-monetary
benefits are recognised as expense in the period
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Short-term non-
accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave are recognised when the absences
occur.

Retirement benefits costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions. The Group has
no further payment obligations once these
contributions have been paid.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be
offsetted as a deemed employee contribution
towards the LSP obligation in term of IAS 19
paragraph 93(a) and it is measured on a net
basis. The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative service
cost arising from the accrued benefits derived
from the Group’s MPF contributions that have
been vested with employees, which are deemed
to be contributions from the relevant employees
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Foreign currency
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(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.

Translation reserve

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's foreign operations are expressed in
Ringgit Malaysia using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during that year, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2024

3.

EXRSTTHERE (@)

(n) 50
0)

(i)

R 5 RAERR
REENINERZ B TR R
% B B E A S B R
e INEFENEBEE
RBEDNERESHRERD
SNEETE RIBE o [E 5 U M
BRI SER

1B 15 52 PR AN 5T 2 3 DA SN
REUZIFEBEEERE
& DERARKZBHE
ArINEERRE - X5 A
RARNTEERBRAEERE
BEESBENRH - EA
FAE BRI LAINE DB 2 FE

EWAERALRE  DRAR
BE AT EY BB 2 IME
R -
B 3
BEEANHBEME
AEESNEBHEERE

B RAImE BRBRITER
AL BN - WAKFXIA
By FEARFHEXRL K
BRIFZFRNEXRKIRKE
Elﬁt’\iﬁﬂTﬁéﬁﬁi%EﬁﬁE’J
ERGE - FIELEREZR
(ﬁﬂﬁ))’bﬁéﬁﬁﬁiﬁw 5 hE

RALNELFHE TR R
aJr



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(o) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expenses that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any,
is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Taxation (continued)
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Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of each reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(o) Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each

104

segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the director of the
Group (the chief operating decision maker) for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of each reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next 12 months.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The Group uses simplified approach in calculating allowance
of ECL for trade receivables by applying an ECL rate. The
ECL rate is determined based on the management’s
assessment on the individual customer’s credit risk grading
dependent on the customer’s financial performance,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions at the reporting date and forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
without undue cost or effort, including time value of money
where appropriate. At each reporting date, the ECL rate is
remeasured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARDIER
(a) Disaggregation of revenue from (a) BEIRRBI | EERIE155RE
contracts with customers under IFRS TEEFEEHWAZDHE -
15:

Year ended
31 May 2023
B E20234F

Year ended
31 May 2024
220245

5A31H 5A31H
HFEE &FE

Total Total
#at ST
RM’'000 RM'000

A+ A=
< A ~< A

Manufacturing and trading:

SLENE S

Sales of manufactured goods — HUf% Shs4E 24,374
Other building materials and H AR B AR -

services:

Sales of building materials EEMEEE 1,338
Sourcing services HRE RS 12
Sales of health supplement HEREE SR

products 4,577
Total BET 30,301
Geographical market: & T

Malaysia 2R P gn 25,712

China - Hong Kong FE — &/ 4,589
Total @Et 30,681 30,301
Timing of revenue recognition Y& A #E 2R R
At point in time 27 B [ Bh 30,681 30,301
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers under IFRS
15: (Continued)

Sales of manufactured goods and
building materials

Revenue from sales of manufactured goods and
building materials is recognised at a point in time
when the manufactured goods and building materials
are transferred to customers, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the manufactured
goods and building materials, and the Group has
present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

sourcing services

The Group acts as an agent when its performance
obligation is to arrange for provision of specified
materials by another party to customer. The Group
does not control the specified materials. Therefore,
the Group recognises revenue in the amount of
commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified materials to
be provided by the other party.

Sales of health supplement products
Revenue from sales of health supplement products
is recognised at a point in time when the health
supplement products are transferred to customers,
being at the point that the customers obtains the
control of the health supplement products and the
Group has present right to payment and collection of
the consideration is probable.

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The Group has applied practical expedient in
IFRS 15: paragraph 121 (a) and (b) to not disclose
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are part of contracts
that have original expected duration of one year or
less.

5.

WARDEBER (&)

(a)

(b)

miREBARLD T /2024 F£3]

B B B % 3R o 2 A 551558
HNEFEABAZDE:
(%)

KR mREEMNEE

SR R EEM B ERA R
Aoan R RS BB T R PR
FEER - AR PESRMK M MR
FRHROIE DI - RS BIREHE
SARE - BREREE -

RBR
ERNBEHRTHR—HRAEFR
HigEM B NEBES/SNIE
A o RSB BTG E YR
o AEERBRASEERARE
EENAE  NEBRHER— TR
HEIEEM#Y o

HERBEMR
REEDNHHEWARRBRERS
RTEPHRREEER  NEFE
SR E I EIA R AR BIR
RAESNRE - BERERKE -

TEREERFEFANNREGE
NEB 2R ZER

AEBEERABEBRTHREERE
ISSRERER 2 121 R(b)
BATN B D BEERSEHEBEH
RHER MZFROEHERR
SRTRHARAR A — F HIA TE & KK

—85 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment

108

Information reported to Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the
director of the Group, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is based on the following reportable and
operating segments identified under IFRS 8 Operating
Segments:

(@) Manufacturing and trading - manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes;

(b)  Other building materials and services — trading
of accessories and pipes and provision of mobile
crane rental and ancillary services;

(c) Sourcing services — provision of sourcing
services; and

(d) Sales of health supplement products - sourcing
and sales of health supplement products.

No operating segments identified by the CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

The Group commenced the sales of health supplement
products during the year ended 31 May 2023 and thus
one new segment is resulted and included in the
segment reporting.
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RENRENES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARZHESR (&)

(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (Continued) (c) B&EDI (&)
Segment revenues and results DEUWAREE
For the year ended 31 May 2024 BE£2024F5A31ALFE

Other building

Manufacturing materials and
and trading services Total

Hih 25

RERES CENY T st
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Revenue WA
External sales INERSHE
Inter-segment sales DEEEE
Segment revenue 2 ERA
Elimination H o
Group revenue SEEBA
Segment result DEELE
Allowance for credit loss ZEEERE
Administrative expenses THRY
Selling and distribution HE RN HAX
expenses
Finance costs BEKAE
Other income HplgA
Share of results of D — R
an associate NGIES
Profit before taxation BREE A A

P P
<R <A

29,287

HREBEABRAR /2024 £

P
<A

30,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

5.

110

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

(c) Operating Segment (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 May 2023

Manufacturing
and trading

Other building
materials and
Services

WARDEBER (&)

(c)

AR ()

D EB U AR B4R ()

7

BZE202355A31HLFE

Sales of health
supplement
products

Sourcing
services

HERRER
RM'000

AL
XA

Revenue ON

External sales INEREEE 24,374 1,338 12 4,577 30,301

Inter-segment sales PEEHE - - - - -
Segment revenue L L ON 24,374 1,338 12 4,577 30,301
Elimination il _
Group revenue E3EN 30,301
Segment result EES 5,657 137 5 1124 6,923
Allowance for creditloss — EEEBEE (1,530)
Administrative expenses  {THBIX (4,308)
Selling and distribution HERDERX

expenses (1,231)
Finance costs BERKA 97)
Other income EilA 971
Share of results of My—HHE

an associate INGES 90
Profit before taxation BRR A& 818
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARSIER (&)
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued) (c) R&EDI (&)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)
The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
as described in note 3. Segment results represents
the profit from each segment without allocation of
administrative expenses, selling and distribution
expenses, finance costs, other income and taxation.
This is the measure reported to CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

2R AR SRAE ()

18D B & T B B MY RE 3P A
MARE ST HRER - DEEE
THEARDEITRFAX ~ HE R H
P - BRERA - A A K IR
A& EBEE A o It RFLEIR D AL
ERBFEBNMBRE TERLE
REAWEETE

Segment assets and liabilities PHMEEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and TX BRI HE REEDFEI DR
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: AEBEERBBEI

As at 31 May 2024 7A2024%5H31H

Other

building

Manufacturing  materials and
and trading services
Hfp@s

HERES DE
RM'000 RM'000 RM

At At
YA IR

sourcing
Services

RRRH
000

At
<A

Sale of health
supplement
products

HERRER
RM‘000

Ax
<A

Consolidated
assets
(liabilities)
GREE
(B

Segment
assets
(liabilities)
(BE)

Unallocated

#7E
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At At At
YR EL| IR

Non-currentassets — FEBEE 3,740 2 - - 3,763 4,243 8,006
Clrrent assets TEHEE 31,640 7,044 1,597 1,203 41,484 1117 42,601
Non-current liabiliies  FFEIEE (95) - - - (95) - (95)
Current liabilties e (7.144) (1,940) (236) ") (9.:391) (4.823) (14,214)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARZHESR &)

(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued) (c) B&EDI (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 May 2023 M2023%F5H31H
Other
building Sale of health Segment Consolidated
Manufacturing — materials and sourcing supplement assets assets
and trading Services Services products (libilties) Unallocated (libilties)
HEREER (Bf) AR (B&)
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
T2 T2 ToE 7t
Non-current assets FEBEE 4858 2% - - 4,884 3687 8571
Current assets THAE 27,358 6,120 2159 2339 37976 41 4,087
Non-current liabiltes &8 & (536) - - - (530) (3,276) (3812
Current liabilities Ak (6,233) (855) (149) (3,490) (10.727) (944) (11,671)
All assets and liabilities are allocated to operating SRETFRERRITRS - EMEN
segments other than certain cash on hand and at FIE - RBRELEHIBEEEREE
bank, other payables, current and deferred tax assets SN FBEERBENEZLED
and liabilities. & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARZHESR (&)

(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued) (c) R&EDI (&)
Other segment information HihpIHER
For the year ended 31 May 2024 BE£2024F5A31ALFE

Other building
Manufacturing  materials and sourcing
and trading services services Unallocated Total
g%

RERES UV RHBRH ROE it
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

AE Ax A% Ax Ax
XA <A E4= XA XA

Amounts included inthe B EHFEF
measure of segment AERINYEE
profit or loss or feE
segment assets:

Additions to non-current  FEERBHEE
assets

For the year ended 31 May 2023 B £2023F5A31BLEFE

Other building
Manufacturing materials and Sourcing
and trading services services Unallocated

A

MO0 ’ RM'000
T2F 2 TR

Amounts included inthe B EA BT
measure of segment AERINHEE

profit or loss or feE
segment assets:
Additions to non-current  REFiREEE
assets 420 - - - 420
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARZHESR &)

(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued) (c) B&EDI (&)
Geographical information B & R
The Group earns revenue from external customers in ANEE A MR = 2 [E SN R P R
two main geographical areas: B A
(i) Malaysia - manufacturing and trading; and other (i) BERAT-HERES K
building material and services HAb M B R R
(i) China - Hong Kong - sourcing services; and iy FE-FBE-HEERSE: &
sales of health supplement products SHEREZEMD
Information about the Group’s revenue from external BHAAREEKRBINIEPWANE
customers is presented based on the location of the RIR BB 25T

operations, as follows:

2024
2024%

RM’000

A%
<A

Malaysia |- S il 30,681
China — Hong Kong PR — BE = 4,589

30,301
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARZHESR (&)

(Continued)

(c) Operating Segment (continued) (c) R&EDI (&)
Other segment information (continued) Hit 2 EER (&)
Geographical information (Continued) wEER (&)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount WTREEEMTHEEHHSE
of segment assets, capital addition in respect of BE - BE - BERSELEEN
property, plant and equipment by the geographical BREEDHT

areas in which the assets are located:

Non-current assets
FRBEE
2024

20245
RM’000

P
<A

Malaysia 2R P 4,540

China - Hong Kong PR —FHB 3,466 3,334
8,006 8,571

Information about major customers FEEFESR

No customers contribute over 10% of total revenue of MERP BAREEH E202455H

the Group for the year ended 31 May 2024 (2023: two). B LFENEIHEEERE10%

(2023%F : MA) °

Customer Segment
'F 7 &P

Customer A Sale of health supplement

products 4,577
BFH $HE RIEE m
Customer B Manufacturing and trading 3,631
®RPL 2ENE 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

6. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 6. EEXEME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors RIER SR BEHIE383(MNIE N AR (F
of the Company disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) of BESN@AER) RAIE2EAEEND
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the NEERARATEENHESFBEROT

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

For the year ended 31 May 2024 HZE202455A31BLFE

Directors;

Fees

Bonus

Other emoluments:
Contributions to Employees

Provident Fund ("EPF") (Not

e) 3 (Hit)

Executive
Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
Yi7Es BUFHTES
Mr. She
Mr. Loh Mr. Chu Mr. Yau Shing Mr. Kwok

Swee Keong Kin Ming Ka Hei Albert Ma Tsz Hin
Loh Swee

Keong’t & REREE BRERE ERE%E BFEEE

RM‘000 RM‘000 RM‘000 RM‘000 RM‘000

At At Ax AL AL
NR R N A XA YA

EEE

T

EfEM

[EENES ([EEDRE))

Total

a5t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

6. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 6. EEME )
For the year ended 31 May 2023 BI22023F5A31ALEE
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
HEs BUFNTES
Mr. She
Mr. Loh Mr. Chu Shing
Swee Keong Kin Ming Albert Ma
Loh Swee
Keong# &
RM'000
25
Directors: %
Fees Be 465 43 43 43 594
Other emoluments: HfpEm -
Contributions to Employees  [EEATE# ([EBAES))

Provident Fund ("EPF') (Note) {31 (#F) 88 - - - 8
Total 3 553 43 43 43 682
Note: et
The Group is required by Malaysian law to make monthly BERATEPERANEEZRARES AT H#
contributions to the EPF, a statutory defined contribution plan for ;o HRRIEESERHINE FATHRLE -/
all its eligible employees based on certain prescribed rates of the FiET & ERESRIETERER-RAOE - #
employees’ applicable remuneration. Contributions are charged to FAEEBANEEIR - BEEAESHHRAA
profit or loss in the period in which they relate. The contributions ERIHE - MAEES AR ELOHRET AT
to EPF are disclosed separately and the contributions to EPF are - TEAL - RBEREMESREN o —BEHHE
included in salaries, bonuses, allowances and other staff benefits. o ALEREE—SERET - RRKRFE -
Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further % 42 AT (R R A R R B2 AR K o

payment obligations. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in future year.

HREEGRAT /2024 £ 117



DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
During the years ended 31 May 2023 and 2024, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of the office.

No Directors’ emoluments were waived during the years
ended 31 May 2023 and 2024.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown were mainly
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Group and of the Company. The
Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments were
for their services as Directors of the Company.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year included 1 (2023: 1) Director whose remuneration are
set out in Note 6. The remuneration for the remaining 4
(2023: 4) highest paid employees who are neither a Director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Bonuses TE4T
Contributions to EPF BEERESMHK
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EEME ()

B 220234 R2024458318 1 F & -
A& E I (7 A R B E F S AR B
T ERIMAREB RN INARE B
B SERN S AE BB A1 o

B 2023 K2024E5A318 L FE & -
WESEWENS -

IO ITESME D EERBE
RHUEAREEAKBRARREHHIR
BREME - BUIFATESZME T
RREERARBEEMIRHRE 2
e -

EEBRSHMEA

RAFE  AEERERSHFHEAR
14 (2023%F 1 1%) B - BRAHFHNF
15 B BT 56 o B8R T 4% (20235 : 4%)
R MER GFARTEERTIETH
AB) WEFEsIm T

2024
20245

RM’000

P —
I8

707
115 20
109 156

931 1,135




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

7. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) 7. BERSHMMEA (&)

The number of the highest paid individuals (other than the ATES H=EFMEA (EEKRIN (G
directors) whose remuneration fell within the following BT AT #E) BASK -

bands is as follows:

Nil to HKD 1,000,000 T8 7% 1,000,000 7T

During the years ended 31 May 2023 and 2024, no # £2023%F K2024%5A318 IF F & -
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest AEEVERNARAAARRIHES
paid employees of the Company as an inducement to join XN EABE - EAMARERSH N
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of A& H R 8 LR S E R BB (E o
the office.

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMAK

Interest expense on lease liabilities FHEAEHFERY

commitment fees B 10
Interest expense on promissory note 7 4 ZiEF| 8 H X 31
97
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. KREANER
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/ BRE AR (GEA) U T &IBRE
(crediting): o

2024 2023
20244 20234
RM’'000 RM’000

A= AN =
== TS5

Auditors’ remuneration 1% £ B 5 B
- audit services — BIZRE 492
Cost of inventories recognised as an R A NFEER A
expense 17,943
Staff costs, excluding directors’ BTIXA  THEESE
remuneration: ZrEM -
— Salaries, wages and other —¥e IENEME
benefits il 3,185
— Contributions to EPF —EEAERHER 239
3,424
Short-term lease payments not Rt AGtEHEA GBS
included in the measurement of EHEENK
lease liabilities:
Crane AR 24
Office equipment EENS 9
Depreciation of; AR EEITE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB NERE 638
Investment property wEME 4
Right-of-use assets EREEE 625
Allowance for credit losses, net: EEEEREFE:
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIR 1,438
Deposits paid BftLe 92
1,530
Rental income from investment KEYENHES WA
property (46)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HERBRER
plant and equipment (Uezs),/ K518 74
Unrealised losses on foreign REE K BB
exchange 1,080
Interest income on: IATEIEZFEWA -
Deposits at bank RITTF K (657)
Late payment from receivables 3B 2 T U SRIE (170)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

10. TAXATION

Malaysia corporate income tax: HARAREEMEN
Current year KEE
Under-provision of income tax in BAFERGHER

prior year T

Hong Kong Profits Tax: BENEH
Current year KFEE
Deferred tax (Note 23): EERIA (M7323) :

Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory
tax rate of 24% (2023: 24%) on the estimated assessable
profits for each of the assessable year.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at a rate of 16.5%
(2023:16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for a subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying corporation under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. For this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits are taxed at 8.25%, and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. Such basis had been
applied for the calculation of the provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary for the year ended 31 May
2024.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the years
ended 31 May 2024 as there is no assessable profits for
both years.

10. BHiIH

2024
20244

RM’'000

A%
<A

797

ERALTCEMESHMESERVTFTERN
AT B R B m AR % B B 3 24% (2023
F:20%) FHE o

EBENESHIOBEFRZ M ERT G
F4216.5% (2023F : 16.5%) 2 FHE &
B HASEE-—HWNBRRAMNESE®R
LETHEEBQRIRIN - RZMBA
Al & * #2,000,000/% 7T H FE 2R B i F)
128.25% M B R BT - HERERBEF A
1216.5%8) 1 BT o B 2202445 431
BIEFE  ZEECEARGTE NS
NEZ BBTISTIRAE -

HRBE2024F5 A3 1B IEFE I EER
Bg A WA ERZMEFEFIRRE
ST -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. BiE (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit FERBERFARFAERNOT

before taxation as follows:

2024
20244

RM’000

P —
I8

2023
20234
RM'000

FoE

Profit before taxation B B A1 A 1,247
Statutory tax rate SETE B 24% 24%
Taxation at applicable statutory tax REAEERETEDN

rate f1E 196
Tax effects of: AT EENHIEHLE
Expenses not deductible for tax TR A

purpose 388
Income not taxable for tax purpose AR (739)
Tax effect of share of profits of PaN fay: NI gl

associates B e (14)
Effect of different tax rate of entities R Efh AAER L EH

operating in other jurisdictions ERNTRMEZE 90
Under-provision of income tax in prior @7F € E pri5 5 B

year T -
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBIBEER

recognised ik 3% 309
Taxation for the year FEHE 730
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

11.

12.

EUBHRRME

EARNINGS PER SHARE 1. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on GRREARBT IHRE THEIETE
the following data:

Earnings &7

Profit for the year attributable RARER AEMLFR
to the owners of the Company piaal
(RM'000) (F£&F 88
(Restated)
(&E5)
Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of BETLRRKR
ordinary shares in issue N8 13,575,591 12,172,655
Basic earnings per share BRERET
(RM cent) (=2 0.72
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for T3t EMEFE 2 SRERBF A
the purposes of basic earnings per share for both years i 2 B AR N S B E 3L 20244
presented has been adjusted for the share consolidation 8R6BAEMZBMEHFIEL TR -
effected on 6 August 2024.
Diluted earnings per share information equals basic MR & £2023%F 2024658318 1F F
earnings per share for the years ended 31 May 2023 EERBAEING £ TR - HEL R
and 2024 as there were no potential ordinary shares FECEBREFRNNEHNSREREA
outstanding during both years. IREF
DIVIDENDS 12. RE
The directors of the Company do not recommend the KRaEEEDNEZRIRMNE 22023F &
payment of dividend for the years ended 31 May 2023 and 2024%5 4318 IEFERHRLE °
2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y%  BERRE
Leasehold
landand  Plant and Motor Office ~ Computer
building ~ machinery  vehicles  Renovation Mould equipment  software Total
BELH
REF  HERER ik £ R HiRE g it
RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000. RM'000
TLE 4% TLE 4% % TeE KT
Carrying value EiE
At 1 June 2022 A00ESAIR AU 3162 2368 693 LM 0 1119 19 10,023
Additions E - 1 200 - - - 2 - 97
Disposal HE - 165) (30) - - - - - (469)
At 31 May 2023 HBESA3NE 25 29% 2334 653 LM 250 114 19 9,851
A1 June 2023 RU23F6A1R 215 29% 23 53 201 20 1141 19 9851
Additions #E - % 195 - § - 2 - 50
Disposal i - - - - - - @) - @)
At 31 May 2024 PMOUESAYNA 25 3033 2809 653 220 250 891 19 10,140

Accumulated depreciation  E3ti7E

At 1 June 2022 M00%6R1A 102 219 1,075 45 878 197 T4 19 5,662
Depreciation fortheyear  EirE 5 1 Y B 19 1 3 - 6%
Disposal e - (165) (173) - - - - - (338
At 31 May 2023 M0BESA3A 107 2174 1135 475 1,074 N 767 19 5962
At 1 June 2023 10BE6A1A 107 2174 1135 475 1,074 N1 767 19 592
Depreciation for theyear ~ £R#E 5 166 m 3 19 10 19 - 85
Disposal it - - - - - - (270) - (200)
At 31 May 2024 R0UESA3NE 1 2310 1,358 o1 1200 il o6 19 6377
Carrying value e

At 31 May 2024 A0UESANA 133 693 147 142 930 9 35 - 3763
At 31 May 2023 ANOBESA3NA 138 824 1199 178 1137 3 34 - 3889
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mEMB®RERHNE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straightline basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building 2%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%
Renovation Over the remaining lease term — 20%
Mould 10%
Factory 10%
Office equipment 10%
Computer software 20%

The Group has pledged leasehold land and building with
a carrying value of approximately RM133,000 (2023:
RM138,000) to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group as disclosed in note 30.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

Ownership interests in
leasehold land held for own
use, carried at depreciated
cost

fFE A E L
FrBE Rz - RITE
AR B B

13.

14.

Plant, machinery and
equipment, carried at
depreciated cost

xR - BB RERE &
FrERARTIER

HREBEABRAR /2024 £

M BERRE (#)

Btk - BEM&ERR (ERTRER
SN) MBEAREIRIA T FERITE -

e MEF 2%
[R5 R A 10%
qE 10%
& EREREEE - 20%
RE 10%
Ti 10%
NS 10%
BB 20%

ANEEE G E®EE 01330005 5
(20234 : 138,000 &) M & -t
BF  EAREEMERN—ARITH
BRI (AP EES0FTIHER) ©

EREEE

RHEREERMNONERREEZR
EFEDSHWT

77

918

995
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-

use assets by class of underlying REEENERY :

asset:

Ownership interests in leasehold FEE AMHEE T8
land held for own use FRE =

Plant, machinery and equipment Y BB RERE

R EERM B DME

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 8) & & EF & (KI:E8)

Expense relating to short-term RHERECHY

leases

During the year, no additions to right-of-use assets (2023:
approximately RM123,000). This amount related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set out in note
22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

15.

14. EREEE (&)

Notes: Miat
(i) ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use (i) HEEAMAE A EER
The Group holds land for its manufacturing and trading and AEBEFEEEAEERE S REMBEN
other building materials and services business, where its B RRBEEBREN LM HRERGE
manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group is FEURZEETFT NEERZSWEE
the registered owner of these property interests, including @ (BEABE L2 T D
the whole or part of undivided share in the underlying land. D) MELEEA - AEBEEEXN
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these —ERFIE - mERTERHE AKEZ
property interests from their previous registered owners, FWEER - Bl T RIZAEBEBUT#ER
and there are no ongoing payments to be made under the FEREAEENEZMIN  EEREBIRE T
terms of the land lease, other than payments based on HEGERTRFENRK - ZHBLRE
rateable values set by the relevant government authorities. ERTRETHAE - W4 EEBTE
These payments vary from time to time and are payable to Fqe
the relevant government authorities.
(i) Other leases @iy  HtiEE
The Group leases production factory, machinery and office REBRBHBN F2E23FHEEEMR
under leases expiring from 2 to 3 years. Some leases B BRERA BOHEERFEEMEK
include an option to renew the lease when all terms are REFBENBRA TEELENEERE -
renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease HEMTREREEENK -
payments.
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. REWE
RM’000
P =
<A
Cost R
At 1 June 2022, 31 May 2023, 20226 418 ~ 2023F5A318 »
1 June 2023 and 31 May 2024 2023F 6 A 1H Kk2024%F5H31H 450
Accumulated depreciation ZItIE
At 1 June 2022 R2022F6 A1H 93
Charge for the year FRMEK 4
At 31 May 2023 and 1 June 2023 7R2023F5H31H &2023F6A1H 97
Charge for the year FRk 4
At 31 May 2024 202465 H31H 101
Carrying value FREE
At 31 May 2024 M2024F5H31H 349
At 31 May 2023 M2023F5H31H 353

miREBARLD T /2024 F£3]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 15. REY=X (&)

The investment property, comprising of a freehold land
and building in Malaysia, is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over 50 years.

Rental income earned by the Group from the investment
property which is leased out under operating leases,
amounted to approximately RM33,000 for the year ended
31 May 2024 (2023: RM46,000). Direct operating expenses
incurred in respect of the investment property amounted
to approximately RM2,000 and RM2,000 for the years ended
31 May 2023 and 2024 respectively.

The fair values of the Group's investment property were
estimated by the directors at RM900,000 and RM769,000 at
31 May 2023 and 2024 respectively based on the valuation
report on the investment property in prior year and were
updated to reflect recent transactions involving similar
properties in the vicinity, using the direct comparison
approach. The fair value is a Level 3 fair value estimation.
In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and
best use of the property is its current use. The operating
leases do not transfer the ownership of the underlying
asset to the lessee by end of lease term, and there is no
option to purchase the asset. The lessor manages the risk
associated with any rights it retains in underlying assets.
Its risk management strategy for these rights includes
various means to reduce risk such as exercising inspection
rights subsequent to reasonable notice and purchasing fire
insurance.
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WA #) /33,0009 7 (20234 : 46,000%
&) o B E2023F R2024%F5A318 L F
B MEREMEELNEELER S
A% 42,0009 E 52,0005 °

20234 2024565310 - HE F M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

16. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 16. REFERARINIRE

2024
20244

RM’'000

A%
<A

Cost of investment in an associate  FARE4 A TH1% &K 2 3,244
Share of post-acquisition profits and {5 UBE &% F &

other comprehensive income HEfh2mEkas 151 90
Exchange adjustments & 5 71 -

3,334

Place of
establishment and  Fully paid-up share Percentage of
principal place of capital and number ownership interests
Name of associate operation of shares heldby the Group Principal activity

R bR rEEASERR
HELRER IRERME BRBEFARRGHE REEIL IERHK
2024 2023
2024F  2023F

China Coal Alliances Trading  Hong Kong HK$17,000,000 divided 32% 32% Trading of building
Company Limited into 17,000,000 shares material
FEERRBESERRE & 17,000,000 7T * BEMKEE S
2 #17,000,0008% % 12

Summarised financial information of EABERNRMBEERBE
material associate
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AEBEABERTICHBERBES
material associate is set out below. The summarised TIBAT « ATHMBERREZIEEA
financial information below represents amounts shown in AR 1R [ B B 7 i 2E R AR Y 2 B S
the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance i
with IFRSS.
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in ZEE N EE AR ARGV B HRE
the consolidated financial statements. WABRR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

16. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
Summarised financial information of

material associate (continued)

China Coal Alliances Trading Company Limited

16. REEE DN TINRE (8)
EXBENRMBEREE )

FEEREBESERQE

2024
20244

RM’'000

A%
<A

3,310

222

Current assets RBEE

Current liabilities mEBaE

Net assets FEE

Group'’s share of net assets AEEERLGEEFE
Goodwill [EES

Exchange adjustment ME H 35 B

Carrying amount of the Group's AEEERKRERE

interests

3,088
988
2,426
52

20244
RM’'000

P
< A

1,967

190

Revenue A
Profit for the period A
Total comprehensive income HR2ER AL

for the period
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2,983

147

2,836
908
2,426

3,334

Period ended
from 1/2/2023

to 31/5/2023
(date of
acquisition)

BHE
2023F2H18 =
2023F5AH31H
(Y FE HHA) 1L EAfA
RM'000

A==
~< B

2,180

281

281




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

17. INVENTORIES 17. #&

At cost: R
Raw materials and consumables R R BFE R 826
Finished goods RUBK in 1,178
2,004
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an EHRARAILHABESNTERES
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: MranT

Carrying amount of inventories sold B &FEMEREEE 15,995
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

18. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for credit losses

B 5 KA
W EEEERE

18. BWRIE - REKAMNK

2024
20245

RM’'000

a1
< A

Other receivables and deposits
Less: Allowance for credit losses
Prepayments

Hofth & YRIB R R &
B EREERE
NN

14,765 14,879
(6,181) (5,662)
8,584 9,217
4,455 3,251
(1,271) (839)

717 234
12,485 11,863

The amounts due from trade debtors are unsecured, do not
carry any interest and the credit term granted by the Group
ranges from 30 to 120 days.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance for credit losses) presented based on the
invoice date:

1-30 days 1£230H
31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61£E90H
91-120 days 91Z120H
More than 120 days 1208 A £

W E SEFEEMATE  MAE
BT T e EE RN F30E120A ©

AT RIBEEZEBHZIINE F KK
B (FREERIREE) e

2024
20244
RM’'000

A%
<A

3,694 2,485
1,051 977
492 657
414 138
2,933 4,960
8,584 9,217

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 28(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY AND A SHAREHOLDER
The amount due from ultimate holding company is non-
trade nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

The amount due from a shareholder is non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The
maximum amount outstanding during the financial year is
approximately RM35,000 (2023: RM12,000).

20. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND
BANK BALANCES

19. BRRZAEZERABARKRRNREA

R SRR AR FRARIERMEE
EEA - RERBREREER -

EUWRRAIBRAIFBES Y - EIEA -
PENERBREE RURFEZ&
BAREESEL A350005 7 (20234F -
12,0008 %) °

20. EHRITER - RERBITER

2024
2024%

RM’000

A%
<A

Current; ENER -
Short-term bank deposits FRHIRITIER 21,247
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHE 6,828
Total FEES 28,075
Less: Deposits pledged as security 35 - EBRIEERZFX (1,127)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 26,948

Short-term bank deposits of the Group have an average
maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months. Bank balances are
deposits held at with licensed banks.

The average interest rates of deposits of the Group are
ranging from 2.30% to 3.81% (2023: 1.75% to 3.80%)
per annum. Included in the short-term bank deposits
are amounts totaling approximately RM212,000 (2023:
RM1,127,000) that have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in
note 30.

AEERERRITFROFHIHPENF
123 A - |ITEBRRRFRIRITOE

NE B 7 R H T FFEN F230%E
3.81%(2023%F : 1.75%%=3.80%) L HAE
TR B IE AR £212,000% 5 (2023
F:1,127,0009 ) HEER S A
BRYAEEN—RRITRVE R HIER(A
MiEE30FTH RE) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

21. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 21. ERFEREGER

2024
2024%

RM’'000

A%
<A

Trade payables B S ENRIA 2,818

Accrued charges EETER 4,698 3,189

Other payables Hofth FE A RRIE 1,485 286

Contract liabilities AHBaE 1,144 791
10,145 11,033

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables EHRNFIBEREZAHEINIRE D

presented based on the invoice date: T

2024
20245
RM’'000

P =
<8

1-30 days 1230H 1,071 1,229
31-60 days 315608 899 894
61-90 days 61£290H 734 949
91-120 days 91£&120H 112 214
over 120 days 1208 A £ ) 3,481
6,767
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to BENFHIEERAIEISH - AEE
75 days. The Group has financial risk management policies BB R B IR IR AR B AT
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the HEHTEEHRANEE -
credit timeframe.
Contract liabilities arise if a particular payment exceeds the BHBEREEMNNBBEEZRECE

revenue recognised to date. RUARFEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

21.

22.

PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 21. ERRERESER (&)
(Continued)

The Group classifies contract liabilities as current because REBEBEHNBESEARE  REA
the Group expected to settle them in its normal operating AEEEHEEIFELERABAEES
cycle. HEE -

Revenue from manufacturing and trading recognised EAFVEHNBERNRE £2024%F5A8
during the year ended 31 May 2024 that was included in BNBLEFERRANEBEERESIRAR
the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year was 791,000% % (2023%F : 671,0009% ) °

amounted to RM791,000 (2023: RMé671,000).

LEASE LIABILITIES 22. HESE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRETAEENREHARNEERE
maturities of the Group'’s lease liabilities at the end of the BB T AL ERH I EIBER -

reporting period.

Present value of
minimum lease payments
BREEEREZRE

Lease liabilities payable: FENBEEaE
Within one year —F R 625
In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ - &F R4
(BREEEMT) 405
1,030
Less: Amount due for settlement S 1218 B R B HARE A
within 12 months (shown FE (RReaE
under current liabilities) THR) (625)
Amount due for settlement after 12 12{# 3 14 3| B e <) 218
months (shown under non-current (RIEREaE T~ IR)
liabilities) 405
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied fE M EE A (E & hN4E T 1518 8 18 3R

to lease liabilities at 3.49% (2023: 3.49%). R E3.49% (20234 : 3.49%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

23. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes
relate to the same tax authority. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position:

EEHERE

Deferred tax liabilities

23. ELEHIE
8 B ENITRN AT A AN IR E E Y
5 B BT T8 & 8 DA K fis iR RE A TR B[R] —
WA HEAERE - RIECHBREER AR
TREH - ATBEDEREWHRE
E SRR A M EAOREK

2024
2024%
RM’'000

A%
<A

2023
20234
RM’'000

A
~< A

95

At beginning of year REF]

Charged to profit or loss (Note 10)

BRI (A1:F10)

2023
20234
RM’'000

A=
~ =

2024
20245

RM’000

P —
<8

131

(36) (68)

At end of year NG N

95 131

The deferred tax liabilities mainly represent the tax effect
of taxable temporary differences arising from accelerated
tax depredation of property, plant and equipment.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At 31
May 2024, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax
asset in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RM3,325,000 (2023: RM4,905,000) that can be carried
forward to offset against future taxable profits. Losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.
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fieh T 388 508 R 20 B AR T M 3R AR R TR U
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

24. PROMISSORY NOTE 24. AREE

2024
20244

RM’'000

A%
<A

The carrying amount of the ERERREEZREEE
promissory note payables are AT HEERE

repayable:
- Amount due for settlement — /& (20234 :
within (2023: after) 12 months JEE) AEET
shown under current FrRm 1218 A A
(2023: non-current) liabilities (2023%F : 1&)
B HRE E WA 3,276
Movements in promissory note E{ELZEZEEEHMT :
payable are as following:
Balance at beginning of the year FAEE % -
Settlement of the acquisition cost BRI ITAH ER A
of an associate by the issue of —EEE & QR 2 W
promissory note %N 3,244
Interest payable FERTFIE 32
Exchange difference ENZER -
Balance at end of the year FRER 3,276
Oon 17 January 2023, a promissory note was issued M2023F 14178 + N & % £&5,500,000
with a principal amount of HK$5,500,000 (equivalent to BT (FHER43,244,0005 %) ByE L ZE
approximately RM3,244,000). The promissory note bears BB BT o AR BIEREEFFE3%
a fixed interest rate of 3% per annum and will be matured ETE - Wi BT A EIBET M EFIHR -

two years from the date of issue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

25. SHARE CAPITAL

25. &

Number of
shares Par value Share capital
R EE EREE [
‘000 HK$'000 RM'000
Fiz TET T

Authorised: EE
At 1 June 2022, 202266818

31 May 2023, 2023F5A31H

1 June 2023 and 2023F6A1E R

31 May 2024 2024F5AR 318 1,250,000 0.08 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERFTRER:
At 1 June 2022 R2022%6 R 18 103,230 0.08 8,258 4,501
Placing REEIR (a) 20,646 0.08 1,652 937
At 31 May 2023 and M2023F5A318 Kk

1June 2023 2023F6A1H 123,876 0.08 9.910 5,438
Issue of subscription ERMEELRRET

shares by newly RERG

allotted ordinary shares (b) 12,388 0.08 991 590
At 31 May 2024 202458318 136,264 0.08 10,901 6,028
Notes: Btet -

(@)

138

Oon 8 July 2022, an aggregate of 20,646,000 shares have
been successfully placed to not less than six placees at
HK$0.151 per share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement.

On 7 June 2023 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the subscription agreement with the subscriber. The
Company allotted and issued subscription shares comprising
12,387,600 ordinary shares of HK$0.082 each on 16 June
2023. The gross proceeds were HK$1,015,000 (equivalent to
approximately RM605,000), of which a sum of HK$991,000
(equivalent to approximately RM590,000) was credited to
share capital and the balance of HK$24,000 (equivalent to
approximately RM15,000) was credited to share premium
account.
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(b)

7202297 A8H + & #£20,646,0000% A% 1%
ERBER & 2 RN G IR SRS
0.151TATTAINELE TR DR NBARA o

M2023F6A7H (X SR EE)  NAR
HREE ANGT LR s o PR2023F 616
B+ A A) i E K178 512,387,6000%
FRR0.0827 T2 LB RBEARM © FT
18 3K 7B 48 58 /51,015,000 7T (FB & R 4
605,000 %) + E & $£991,0007% 7T (18
E R #A590,0002 &) Bt AR - #4258
24,0007 (FHE R #15,0009% ) Bt A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

26.

All ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu
with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the
Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme.

The share option scheme will be valid and effective for a
period of ten years from the date of the adoption of the
scheme by equity settlement. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the share option scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue upon the date
of the shares of the Company listed on the GEM. The
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the share option scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

No option was granted as at the date of this report.

RESERVES
(a) SHARE PREMIUM

At beginning of year F1
Issue of subscription shares
by newly allotted ordinary

shares (Note 25)

BB AT
BB (H5£25)

25. A& (#)

26.

At end of year FR

HREBEABRAR /2024 £

PRERNFRAETHEBREZRREN
EBRRAERTEFARFHA

RIEAR A RIIREN2017F6 427 B BAH
EMRBE  AQFIDAKERR—E
FERSHERT B -

FE R RERT 817G B SRANET 81 E AR+
HIRABR AN WARDERE - R
IRIB AR 8 AR AR H B A
&I A] RE R WO BB BB P8 S B9 B 1) 88
B ERAXAGHBIBARE RN NGEM
EWEADETRDAHNI0% - RIE
FE R T 8 M AR X BEfa] Eo A B R T
BB R ERRITENAE R ARITER
BAREITER A TEITZBMNEKE - 1
AR NSBEE TR HTROH
30% °

RAEE B - BUER B EMRBAGE -

fEfe
(@) BtnE

15 831

28,074

28,059
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

26. RESERVES (continued)

27.

140

(b) OTHER RESERVE

The other reserve at 31 May 2023 and 2024
represented the aggregate amount of the fully
paid registered or paid-in capital of Target Precast
Industries Sdn Bhd, Target Sales & Marketing Sdn
Bhd, Target Crane & Logistic Sdn Bhd, Gallant Empire
Limited, SK Target Holdings Sdn Bhd and Loyal Earn
Limited.

TRANSLATION RESERVE

The translation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from that of the Group's
presentation currency.

(c)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
balance. Equity balance consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
accumulated loss.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on an on-going annual basis. As part of this review, the
management of the Group considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends as well as the issue of new debt and
repayment of debt.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the
Group is that it must have a public float of at least 25%
of the shares in order to maintain its listing on the Stock
Exchange.
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26.

27.

@i ()

(b) HAtfEE
7A2023%F K2024F5H31H &Y H b
fé# 1% #8Target Precast Industries
Sdn Bhd - Target Sales &
Marketing Sdn Bhd - Target
Crane & Logistic Sdn Bhd -
Gallant Empire Limited - SK Target
Holdings Sdn BhdLoyal Earn
Limited® &2 sk sk B U & A 42
#H o

(c) EXRfE
P AR SR E R E R
RIRNARE 25 ERENINERTTH
PSRRI E L ERE

EXEmER
AEEERLEAURRALES K
THEEE - TFBEES R
EAFSIEMEBRBABR  F50 -
A EEEEHBRETE -

REENERNRIBHBERBAK ° IR
RARBREARAER ANRHERE
BEBAKRETER -

AEEEEE HRFERERNRRE -
ERBERN—HD  AEEEEEZE
BEARRARERERNERBER - REAX
SEEEENER  AKESREKRMN
KB ARBTHERLEEER FEHE
EREARE -

NSRBI — SMNEB R DAY B AN B SRR L 4%
BHRAZ VBN RRITRE - B
MRS ELIOBSE 32 P ) _E T AL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. €@TH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) eI AER

2024
20245

RM’'000

P
<A

Financial assets THEE

Amortised cost BEEER AR 39,760

Financial liabilities cRBEE

Amortised cost BEER AR 15,339
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEREKREEEERBER

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments and details AEENETESHMTANZESR

of these financial instruments are disclosed in the TEMFENBEANERE - Hi%

respective notes. The risks associated with these £ 5 p T B AR A R B N R Al R R

financial instruments and the policies on how to ZERBRRBEREIINT -

mitigate these risks are set out below.

Market risk 5 Bk

Interest rate risk FIE 2 f

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk AN ER B AR E R 1T A AR R

in relation to the Group's bank balances and fair B35 7 1 2 2 B M B[] 5E A1) 2= AR

value interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate lease E8E  RYBRTERNELER

liabilities, short-term bank deposits and promissory BN D FEMERER -

note.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate 7N 52 B35 B 3 RN R SRR o A

hedging policy. However, management closely i BERERIEREMS XS

monitors its exposure to future cash flow interest rate Bym S| BEA YR ARB S RFER

risk as a result of changes in market interest rates and [Blfg - WA R B RE EERT

will consider hedging changes in market interest rates SR REF) o

should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

28. EWMTHE (&)
(b) MBEEABEREREREE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

142

and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Lease liabilities which are fixed rate instruments are
insensitive to any change in interest rates. A change
in interest rate at the end of the reporting period
would not affect profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances
as the management of the Company considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank are minimal and
the impact from the exposure to interest rate risk
sensitivity is considered insignificant.

Currency risk

The Group has certain bank balances denominated in
HKD other that the functional currency of respective
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.

If the respective currency of the cash and bank
balances had strengthened/weakened 5% against
Malaysian Ringgit at 31 May 2024, the post-tax profit
of the Group for the year would have decreased/
increased by:
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SRR (&)

FIEmEE (&)
BEMERTAZHEEREENEN
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HERE DT
BERIRITERERBBEDT
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TREBMTARE - AstEHFXE
RHGUEREMS - FERE/LT
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BEEmE
REEBEERNEERI  AEH
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AR ER BIE B 7 V) BR PR SN [ R
EEZAR

MRERBRITEBHSEER
2024F5 A3 L ERARSE
BB E5%  BIANEERFERN
Rite s FIgR A 10 -

The Group
rEEH
2024 2023
20244 20234

RM’'000 RM’000

P A Ze
<A < A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is primarily due
to the collectability risk of the trade receivables.
The length of the credit period granted by the Group
will depend on the customers’ scale of operation,
reputation and credibility. The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluation on the financial condition
of trade debtors and tightly monitors the overdue
debts. The Group will take the necessary follow up
action in case of long outstanding debts or when the
above credit evaluation results draw the attention of
management.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which might cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties arises from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit
risk as at 31 May 2024 on trade receivables from
the Group’s five major customers amounting to
approximately RM9,179,000 (2023: RM6,221,000) and
accounted for 62% (2023: 42%) of the Group’s total
trade receivables. The major customers of the Group
are reputable organisations. The directors closely
monitor the subsequent settlement of the customers.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

28. TMTH (&)

(b)

miREBARLD T /2024 F£3]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

144

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good
credit ratings and the Group has limited exposure to
any single financial institution.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management
reviews the recoverability of each trade debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group applies simplified approach on
trade receivables to provide for the ECL prescribed
by HKFRS 9. The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix based
on shared credit risk characteristics by reference
to settlement pattern taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

28. EMTHE (&)
(b) MBEEABEREEREREE
(4)

FERBREBER S (&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

AEENAEEER BT R
BIEATER

Internal credit

rating
RS E TR

Description

3

Trade receivables

EARUHKE

Other financial
assets

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does Lifetime ECL - not 12-month (“12m”)
not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired ECL
e RHUFANENERRE - BUEFABEHFTE LHEHEERSE 12087 (T12f8R 1)
ABEEERE BHEEER
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
settle after due date credit-impaired
ERYE EBAEERONERER  ERASROBHAREE 2HEBEEESR 2EABHEE
AEEEERE B8
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
since initial recognition through information developed credit-impaired credit-impaired
internally or external resources
fea= NREHSFEREGHERBREVERAAREER 2HEHREESHE 2HEBEEER
S REEEERE REEEERAE
L0SS There is evidence indicating the asset is creditimpaired  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
creditimpaired creditimpaired
B8 BRBERTEAECRERGERE PHRESEEES 2HBHEERSE
BREEERE BREEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off  Amount is written
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no off
realistic prospect of recovery
sy BREBEBRTEBABABRENYBREEASETRER BEFBENE B IREM

Y E AT B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. €RT A (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIKEREEEERKE
and policies (continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment BEERERBETE (&)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRFMASEAEXBREEE
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL BIHHeREENEERBRM
assessment: a:

2024 2023

Gross Gross

External Internal carrying  carrying

Note credit rating credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL  amount  amount

) 2024%  2023%
We  MBEEFER ABEEFR 12EAAZHRNEEER AREE 4KEE
RM'000  RM'000

ToE  T4%

Financial assets at amortised cost

RERKAGTENSHAE
Amount due from ultimate
holding company 19 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 40 4
Jidle=iaS NG E U TER (MizE1) REARREEEE
Amount due from a shareholder 19 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 35 12
FEWIRRHE TER (FsE1) PEAEHEERE
Short-term bank deposits 20 A1, AAA N/A 12m ECL 21,089 1,166
RERITER TEm REARREEEE
Cash at bank 20 A3, AA3, AAA N/A 12m ECL 7,142 6,828
fRE TEm REARHEEER
Other receivables and deposits 18 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 4,455 3,251
HtiERERES TR (MzE1) REARREEER
Trade receivables - goods and Lifetime ECL - not
services 18 N/A Low risk credit-impaired 7217 5,807
BHRWE - SN RR% TR N SHRMEERS
REEEERE
Watch list Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired 1,222 2,598
BRigE 2RBAEEEA
REEEERE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired 1,862 1,717
%5 2UEBLEEE
REEEERE
LosS Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired 4,464 4,757
BE rHEBEEER
BEEEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Note:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since

initial recognition.

ERBAET

28. €T A (#)
(b) ¥ HEBEEBEERREX
(#)
FERBREBER S (&)

Bt

1. HRANEERREEREME  AEE
£ Am AR E B MR ERIRE
ERBELCARIEM -

Past due
under
lifetime ECL
2HEH

Not past
due under
12m ECL
1218 B 7851
EEBBRET
B FRiBHA
RM’000 RM’000

A NS

Amount due from ultimate & U & AR 42X A A)
holding company SR

Amount due from a JE UK B 3R K TE
shareholder

Other receivables HAtb pE R IE

Deposits b

< B ~< =

- 40 40
- 35 35
- 174 174
- 3,010 3,010

Amount due from ultimate JEURF4RIERE A &)
holding company K8

Amount due from a JE WS AR 3R SR IE
shareholder

Other receivables e W skIE

Deposits Ze

Past due
under
lifetime ECL

Not past
due under
12m ECL
121 A 78 58

=8 FEEBBRET
; R
RM’000

A
Ed=

- 44 44
- 12 12
- 198 198
- 2,214 2,214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. €RT A (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIKEREEEERKE
and policies (continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment BEERERBETE (&)
(Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime TRINTIBEBE T ERE ZEIK
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables RIEERANEHBEREEBENE
under the simplified approach. B o

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

2 HFEH 2 HFRHE

FEER FEER
(R&E (B®4&
FERIE) FERE)
RM'000 RM'000

A= A=
~< = ~X H

At 1 June 2022 R2022%F 618 1,812 2,412 4,224
- Impairment losses recognised  — BHERREEEE 1,277 161 1,438
At 31 May 2023 and 72023F5H31H

1 June 2023 N2023F6 18 3,089 2,573 5,662
— Impairment losses recognised  — B HERRIEEE - 476 476
— Impairment losses reversed — BB EIRERE (38) - (38)
- Exchange differences — [EHERE - 81 81
At 31 May 2024 7K2024%5H31H 3,051 3,130 6,181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. €@T A (#)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIKEREEEERKE
and policies (continued) (%)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement in 12 months
ECL that has been recognised for other receivables
and deposits under the general approach.

FERBREBER S (&)

TEIIRRE M AR I
OB R A AR 401218 B TS B
EiBMED -

RM’000

o =%

< A

R2022%F6 A1H 747
BRRREESE 92

At 1 June 2022
Impairment losses recognised

202358318 &
2023F6H1H
B R E & 18

At 31 May 2023 and 1 June 2023

Impairment losses recognised

At 31 May 2024 M2024F5H31H

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers.
The ECL rate are estimated based on its credit rating,
past and current default record and current past due
exposure of the customer.

The impairment loss for trade receivables are
assessed individually and determined by reference
to independent professional valuer’'s assessment in
accordance with IFRS 9 by adopting its independently
selected parameters which take into consideration
of external credit rating, historical market default
records and forward-looking information. For credit-
impaired debtors, the Group assessed the outstanding
amount individually under ECL model. At 31 May
2024, the gross trade receivables of approximately
RMé6,326,000 (2023: RM6,474,000) was past due and
impairment loss of approximately RMé6,181,000 (2023:
RM5,662,000) was recognised as at 31 May 2024.

ERAKBEERREE -7 -
AEBEHERFERAAMEET
B MHEEBREXDREBEAEE
FH - BERERZENRERAR
P ERa s O fhE o

B S RBGRENREBRBINESE
B BEAEMBEREM SRS
2RI ZE 955 M AT A 3 7T 1B A1 5T &
BT EYRMEBYETENZ
- EPZERINBEETR  EL
MHBELHLERATEEER - gt
REERENEBAMNE  A5H
BIEFEREESBERXEHRESR
S REETERFTE o R202455A
318 © #16,326,000% & (20234 :
6,474,0002F ) B 5 EUGIAER
O A HR o R20244F5A318 4
6,181,000% & (20234 : 5,662,000
2F) ZREBEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

150

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
oCcurs sooner.

The Group makes periodic individual impairment
assessment under ECL model for refundable
deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The directors of the Group believe that
there are no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition. At 31 May 2024,
the Group provided impairment loss of approximately
RM1,271,000 (2023: RM839,000) based on 12-month
ECL.

No ECL has been provided for amounts due from
ultimate holding company and amount due from a
shareholder. The Company limits its exposure to
credit risk for amounts due from ultimate holding
company and amount due from a shareholder and
there was no recent history of default. Management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations. Management will continues to monitor
the position and will take appropriate action if there
are changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In these regards, other than the credit risks mentioned
above, the management believes the Group does not
have any other significant credit risk and will monitor
the exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities which has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for the financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

28. €®I A (&)

(b)

miREBARLD T /2024 F£3]

HHEEBEEEEREE
(#)

FERBREBER S (&)

UL E - BT EXRBIMERR
o BIRER R E W EM
HppEXEERR - BSHEER
ZEEERR -

EEERBDESERE  AEEY
R PR FEMRKFETESR
WHEEREEREERBENR/AE
KSEXBRERRESHKFE - A
ROBRERERDOTE -

TRAVAKEITESRAER
RHANFY - FRBAEETHK
ERNANHF BMNIEITES R
BERMRRESREITR - WA
BEREIHAREGEEKEHAM
=

151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. €RT A (%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) HERABREEBEEREE
and policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRER (&)
The table includes both interest and principal cash RTPBEFNEREASHEESRE ° i
flows, to the extent that interest flows are floating MEEZEFE - BIREIR S EEIZ
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from WERAF R RE -

152

interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted

average On demand or Total Total

effective  less than undiscounted carrying
interest rate 12 months 1to 2 years Over2years cash flows amount

nE¥s  BEXY RERRE
RBAZ  2fEANUT 1528 2P0E REME  AKEE
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

%
% T2F T4E 28 T T8

As at 31 May 2024 R2024%5531R
Payables and accrued charges e 5B R Bzt E R

Lease liabilities HERE

Promissory note EHEE

As at 31 May 2023 R2023%5531R

Payables and accrued charges B ZEREFER - 10,242 - - 10,242 10,242
Lease liabilities HEEE 349% 649 409 - 1,058 1,030
Promissory note EAER 3% - 3473 - 3473 3276
The Company provides financial guarantees to banks AARERENB AR ZRITRE
for banking facilities of its subsidiary company. The FERITIEL B S HEAR - AR RHE
Company monitors on an ongoing basis, the results of BB AREERERIER - AT
the subsidiary company and repayments made by the TH R 2 K= B BB AR & 7 By ddt B
subsidiary company. The maximum exposure to credit BAREZERE AHMEA 2RI
risk are equivalent to the amounts of the banking BESE  HERSHE  BER
facilities utilised by the said subsidiary company as KERAMBRATBIERER -

of the reporting date. As of the reporting date, there
was no indicator that the subsidiary company would
default on repayment.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement
date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

28. ¥WMTA (@)
(c) AF{ERTE
() BEAVEHENSREE
R&af&E
ATEER
RTEFERRBANSRS
PR B B 11T FT PR 8 A BB
AEEEREEEMTNT

s FAMHE:EERE-R
WARE MHEREEXA
ERETERRNERTIHH®
BRERAE) FENRYF
18-

e FBMHE:FRAEZLE
ABUE - BITFAE—RIEZ
EMABERHASE BT
A E 2T 8 R A BB
AEMNAFE TAERE
A SR 5 0 £ AT 15 T 5 BUR
B A\ B -

e E=AMHE:ERAEEALSH
BERB ARBTEN A HE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (Continued)

154

(i)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee.

Fair value of the financial assets

and liabilities carried other than fair
value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair
values. Fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow
analysis, with the most significant inputs being
the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING  29. EFBELNEEHEK
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details the reconciliation of opening and TEREINEGEERERERE I BN
closing amounts in the consolidated statement of financial RBEEHNHREREZHBENES
position for each liability for which cash flows have MR TR 2 AV R B R e R BRETIS

been or would be, classified as financing activities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

Promissory Interest Lease
note payable liabilities Total

RARE EANE HERE EH
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000

A At At At
B4 B4 B B4

At 1 June 2022 R2022F6A1H - - 1,450 1,450
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRELE
Capital element of lease rentals paid EfEeERES - - (601) (601)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEE NS HD - - (56) (56)
Finance costs paid BRBENA - (10) - (10)
- (10) 793 783
Other changes: Hth#2g :
Settlement of acquisition cost of an associate ERETEALZEEE
by the issue of promissory note —EBE AR ER R 3,244 - - 3,244
Lease modification HEER - - 181 181
Interest expenses FERY 32 10 56 98
At 31 May 2023 and 1 June 2023 2023558318 R
2023F6A1H 3,276 - 1,030 4,306
Changes from financing cash flows: RERSTESD
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERESERSH - - (625) (625)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BfezASHS - - (24) (24)
Finance costs paid BERBERE - (10) - (10)
3,276 (10) 381 3,647
Other changes: Hih 2w
Exchange difference fEHEH 71 - - 71
Interest expenses MERE 99 10 24 133
At 31 May 2024 12024%55A31H 3,446 - 405 3,851
The major non-cash transaction was an acquisition of an FEIRERFABBETERLERS
associate settled by promissory note. BB —EEE N A °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

30. BANKING FACILITIES 30. RITELE
At 31 May 2024, a subsidiary company of the Group has M2024F5A318 - AEEM—HEBA
banking facilities amounting to approximately RM5,750,000 AIRER 1T L& 49 A5,750,000% & (2023
(2023: RM5,750,000). % 1 5,750,0008F) °

v

These facilities are secured by: 2EMERNA T SIEERR

p=11l

()  leasehold land under right-of-use assets and building () BRME 4 A207,000% F (2023
with a carrying amount of approximately RM207,000 & :2150009F) NEEAEEE
(2023: RM215,000); HETHRELHRIETF

(i) fixed deposits amounting to approximately RM212,000 (i) % AB212,000% & (20234 :
(2023: RM1,127,000); and 1,127,0009%) BEMFR &

(i) corporate guarantee by the Company amounting to (i) A aERMHAEY5,750,0009 F (2023
RM5,750,000 (2023: RM5,750,000). F : 5,750,000 F ) ARER ©

At 31 May 2024, the utilisation of banking facilities R2024%5831H - BYARRITEELN A

amounted to approximately RM534,000 (2023: RM534,000) 534,000% & (2023 : 534,000% &

for the performance guarantee disclosed in note 32. PRI 32 Frif R R B AOHEIR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 31. AMIE A RS
During the year, the Company has direct and indirect FR - ARARTIMBRRERE AR
shareholders/equity interests in the following subsidiary NI E AR
companies:

Equity attributable to the Group
AEBELRE
Place of Issued and At At
incorporation/ fully paid-up 31 May 31 May

Name of Company operation share capital 2024 2023
i i
SMAYL/ BERTR  2024%F 2023F

Principal activities

ACEL ES b #BEREX 5H31A 5A31H

Target Precast Industries  Malaysia RM500,000 100% 100%
Sdn. Bhd. BSRED 500,0009 %

Target Sales & Marketing ~ Malaysia RM70,002 100% 100%
Sdn. Bhd. BSREDR 70,002%8%F

Target Crane & Logistic ~ Malaysia RM100 100% 100%
Sdn. Bhd. BSREDR 1002F

Gallant Empire Limited*  British Virgins US$1,000 100% 100%
Island 1,000 7T

EBENES

SK Target Holdings Malaysia RM100 100% 100%
Sdn. Bhd. BSREDR 1002F

Loyal Earn Limited Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100%
B 187

Target Foundry Sdn Bhd ~ Malaysia RM100 100% 100%
SRAE 10083

Extra Mega Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100%
£ 187

SK Solutions Limited Hong Kong HKD100 100% 100%
£ 100/ 7T

* Directly held by the Company *

TEEK

Manufacturing and trading of precast
concrete junction boxes
HEREERMRALIERR

Trading of precast concrete junction
boxes and accessories and pipes
BERLRRIEREREHREE

Provision of mobile crane rental and
ancillary services
REZBARERBEREERS

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Provision of sourcing of material
suppliers services
REMRRB R RS

Inactive
TEeg

Inactive
TEEY

Sales of health supplement products
HEREED

MARREERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
(Continued)
None of the subsidiary companies had issued any debt
securities at the end of the reporting period.

32. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has provided
a performance guarantee in respect of a project signed
with Telekom Malaysia Berhad, a customer, amounting to
approximately RM534,000 (2023: RM534,000) for securing
a project. This guarantee will be discharged upon the
completion of the project.

33. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(@) Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and in
note 19.

(b) The remuneration paid or payable to the key
management personnel, being the directors of the
Company, during the year is included in note 6.
The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined with reference to the performance of the
individuals and market trends.
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31.

32.

33.

RKE 2B ER (&)

BT B A RN | E R BITEMER

KA o
=)

BHAER

RBERAR AEEERE—BEP
Telekom Malaysia BerhadzsE/EB R
HEXER - £8%)A534,00059F (2023
% :534,00097F) + AERBEIEER - %
FEARAGHIE B FE A& R R o

BB X Z
(@ EERBTHNESNEEPHEIREK

R P FE194% 55 -

b) FREMNKENEZEEABRAR
NAESE) WFHHENM T T8
EEABNFII2EEARRR
MISEBEEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

Current Assets
Receivables, deposits and
prepayment

hBEE
FEWFRIR ~ mE RIBAK

34.

Amounts due from subsidiary JiE W 88 X B 3RIE
companies (Note a) (Kiita)

Cash and bank balances Ra MIRTTH

Total Current Assets REBEEHAE

Current Liabilities REBEE

Payable and accrued charges JERT B K ERTE A

Amounts due to subsidiary AN ENGIE
companies (Note a) (Kiata)

Total Current Liabilities FREBEEHEE

Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets

BnB (BE)&E

Net (Liabilities)/Assets F(AfE)BE
Capital and Reserves BARRFE
Share capital [N

Share premium [ graping it

Accumulated losses (note b)

Rt (KiEb)

(Capital Deficiencies)/
Total Equity

(EABH)  HERAE

R BB B TR

RRRIRHRERROABANROER €
T

2023
20234
RM’'000

A==
~< A

1,339

2,457

3,796

419

3,312

3,731

65

65

6,028 5,438
28,074 28,059
(34,716) (33,432)

65
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHME

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. AR ANHBMRRE (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
The movements of the Company’s equity are as follows: AT EREEIAT

Share Accumulated
Share capital premium losses
ARAR B fn s B ZREER
(note 25)  (note 26(a))
(Hfzt25)  (Hti26(a)
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A+ A A He At
< A < A S < A

At 1 June 2022 M2022F6A1H 4,501 27,228 (33,207) (1,478)
Loss for the year FNEE - - (225) (225)
Placing fiEEIE 937 831 - 1,768
At 31 May 2023 and 2023F5A318 &

1 June 2023 2023F6H1H 5,438 28,059 (33,432) 65
Loss for the year FREE - - (1,284) (1,284)
Issue of subscription shares by & i@ ¥ 3% & @A 31T

newly allotted ordinary shares  RBERRHD 590 15 - 605
At 31 May 2024 M2024F5H31H 6,028 28,074 (34,716) (614)
Notes: Bt -

(@) The amounts due from/(to) subsidiary companies are (@)  FEUR (FERT) BB AR RIE A EIKE -
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. R B RAREREE -

(b)  The loss for the year ended 31 May 2024 comprises the (b)  BE2024F5A3MH IEFEZEED R
reversal of allowance for credit losses recognised against EEWHE A R ERANEEBEREHRR
amounts due from subsidiary companies of approximately #910,000% 7 (20234 : 39,0007 ) °

RM10,000 (2023: RM39,000).

The financial position of the Company was approved and AN BB TS AR O R B 20248 A29R
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 August REEEH AT RETE THRTIES
2024 and are signed on behalf by: REEZE:
Loh Swee Keong Yau Ka Hei

BxRE
Director Independent Non-Executive Director
EF BUIFBITEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

35.

36.

COMMITMENT
Capital commitment contracted for at the end of the
reporting year but not yet incurred is as follow:

YE NG

Property, plant and equipment

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group entered into several short-term leases for
equipment. As at 31 May 2024, the outstanding lease
commitments relating to these equipment is RM6,000
(2023: RM24,000).

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to investment property owned by
the Group with lease terms of one year, with one year
extension. All operating lease contracts contain market
review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its
options to renew. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as
follows:

Within one year

35. A&

RIEFRDFTE M ARE LR E A&
T

2024
20245
RM’'000

P —
Ed=

7,157

6. KEHERH

EEBEEREBEA
AEERREITLE TEHEAE - ¥
202454310 - HZEREBBENR
18 28 7 & & ¥E 56,0005 & (20234 -
24,0005%) »

REBEESHEA
REMERAEEBEENRENEER
EMs—F AEH-F- ALK
LHEANBEEREATREEER
ERHEMT™IZ BRI - AH AL ERHE
HifE S B R M R R 2

HEMRESRERENTWNT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2024
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 May 2024 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current’
Non-current Liabilities with

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Covenants’
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’
Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance
and IFRS 7 Arrangements’

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Annual Improvement Annual Improvements to IFRS

Project Accounting Standards -
Volume 112
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements*
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures*

Amendments to IFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2 E%%iﬂveforannualpeHodsbegnnmg(M1oraﬁer1Januaw

K E%%iﬂveforannualpenodsbegnwﬂngon or after 1 January

4 E%%iﬂveforannualpeﬂodsbegnnmgtn1oraﬁer1Januaw

5 E?f2e7ctive for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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IEFEEREBZIERT ~ FBE
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R WAREE202455A31HIEFE
ERENZEMHRRARR - ZFH

REE TR e AN REEEE -
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19587 NEIR) R

BRI BRE RS REEREBRENT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB®RERHNE

38. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE 38. MEHMRESEE

REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 June 2024, the Company held an extraordinary
general meeting. Reference is made to the circular of
the Company dated 31 May 2024, which approved the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, amounting
to approximately RM7,952,000 for manufacturing facility
purpose.

On 27 June 2024 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with the subscriber, pursuant
to which the Company will allot and issue an aggregate of
27,252,720 subscription shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.08 per share. The net proceeds from the subscription
after deducting related professional fees and related
expenses are expected to be approximately HK$2,100,000.
The subscription was completed on 17 July 2024.

On 2 August 2024, an ordinary resolution was passed on
share consolidation (“Share Consolidation”). According
to the resolution, every 10 issued and unissued existing
shares of par value HK$0.08 each in the share capital of the
Company would be consolidated into 1 consolidated share
of par value HK$0.8 each (“Consolidated Share”). The
Share Consolidation became effective on 6 August 2024.

On 16 August 2024 (after trading hours), the Company
entered into the sale and purchase agreement with
Wanshun Technology Industrial Group Limited (the
“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire, the sale ordinary issued share(s) of a Hong Kong
Company to be incorporated, which will hold the entire
equity interest of Shenzhen Wanshunfu Smart Life Service
Company Limited. The consideration is HK$5.5 million and
will be satisfied by the issuance of the promissory note by
the Company on the completion date.

M20245F6 5188 + RATERIT T R
RIRE o 2R A R A Bl A202445 A
THEBE - #EWE AR RER BN
M BERZRE - £FHA7,952,000

A=
< B

o

20246 A278 (R 5B &) » AR
AIERB AL RERE - B AR
A 1% 12 R 0 B & A%0.087%8 JL g 3 K 31T
& $£27,252, 7200 REER (D - TEEIRES
B2 S EIE T8 (KNRHEEEER
NMABRIR S 18) 49/42,100,0008 T © R
BEIEN2024F7 B178 5T ©

202458 A28 - BRAK K & O (B
BEG]) HEBARTERR - BIEZ
RER - ARARAFETREREEAE
0.08B T B BT RABEITHRABRNG
At A—RERAEESEITHA RN
([EHERHB]) - RDE HFE20245F8H6
BAEAERN ©

202458168 (32 5 B &R &) © &
2 &) Ewanshun Technology Industrial
Group Limited ([&A |) FI EE e
Bt EABEKRERELE - BARF
ERMRAEBE —RGTMEKINEE
AR (BRERBIEEEEEERSEE
RARIMNEERE) NEBITHEL®
g - RIERSSEEET  WHBARRA]
P TER B BiAZE TR ZHR R A S A o
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBERE

Year ended 31 May
BES5A31ALEE
RESULTS 2024 2023 2022
ES: | 2024% 20235 20225
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A= At A=s
<A X A ~X A

~

Revenue from continuing R EBHERL E£H%H

operations WA 30,681 30,301 21,287 21,073 19,404
Gross profit from continuing 78 B # & &4 £

operations E7 8,559 6,923 3,568 4,671 4,906
Profit before taxation from 7 B# B Q& %74

continuing operations fO R A& 7 1,247 818 (1,609) (2,966) (3,482)
Profit for the year FREF
— from continuing operations -3k A BB L& %% 108 88 (1,941) (3,642) (3,944)
- from discontinued -REEKELEE

operation % - - 18 (1,211) (484)

As at 31 May
RW5A31H
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

BEERERE 20245 20234 20224 20214 20205

RM‘000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Ax At At At At

Total assets EELE 50,607 50,658 41,694 42,410 46,187
Total liabilities BEBE 14,309 15,483 8,780 8,822 10,079
Net assets FEE 36,298 35,175 32,914 33,588 36,108
CAPITAL AND RESERVES &4 R

Total equity EReE 36,298 35,175 32,914 33,588 36,108
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